
Board of Directors Meeting 

Friday, June 20, 2014 
I0am- 3pm 
 
International Agri-Center  
Social Hall 
4500 S. Laspina Street 
Tulare CA 
 

Meeting Contact 
Mike Dozier, Executive Director 
559-294-6021 
 
Office of Community & Economic Development 
5010 N Woodrow Avenue M/S WC-142 
Fresno CA 93740 

 

AGENDA  |  June 20, 2014 

  PAGE NO.  

I.  Convene Meeting; Introductory Remarks  Secretary Karen Ross 

II.  Recognition of Our Sponsors  Secretary Karen Ross 

III.  Oath of Office  Secretary Diana Dooley 

IV.  Public and Board Comment  Board and Public 

V.  Consent Calendar  Mike Dozier 
 • Minutes 3-7  
 • Secretariat Report   
 o Lead Executive Memo 8  
 o Communications 9-13  
 o Annual Summit Sponsorship Packages 14  
 • Smart Valley Places 15  
 • SJV Rural Development Center 16-17  
 • SJV Housing Collaborative 18  
 • SJV Regional Broadband Consortium 19  
 • Community & Regional Planning Center 20  
 • SJV Regional Industry Clusters Initiative 21-23  
 • Work Group Reports 24-39  
VI.  Cal Enviroscreen 2.0 - Draft California Communities 

Environmental Health Screening Tool Report  
• Arsenio Mataka - Assistant Secretary, Cal EPA 
• George Alexeeff - Director, Office of Environmental 

Health Hazard Assessment 

 DeeDee D’Adamo 

VII.  Delta Collaboration- Update 40-81 Pete Weber 

JOINT MEETING WITH THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY REGIONAL POLICY COUNCIL 
AGENDA CONTINUES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE 

1



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
  

AGENDA  |  June 20, 2014 

VIII.  Lunch Served (buffet)   

IX.  Setting the Stage 
• The Partnership overview 
• The Regional Policy Council (RPC) Overview 
• Current Collaborations 

  
Mike Dozier 

Robert Poythress 
Rob Terry 

Stacie Dabbs 
Jason Waters 

X.  Key Issues/Projects for 2014 
• Partnership’s current key issues 
• RPC’s current key issues 
• Discussion/Q&A 

  
DeeDee D’Adamo 

Ahron Hakimi 
Supervisor Vito Chiesa 

XI.  Projects of regional significance 
• Sustainable Communities Strategies 
• Smart Valley Places: Fair Housing and Equity 

Assessment 
• Greenprint 
• Housing and Transportation Report 

  
Ted Smalley 
Maya Abood 

 
Clark Thompson 
Secretary Ross 

XII.  Closing Remarks from Board Chairs  Robert Poythress 
Secretary Ross 

END JOINT SESSION 
XIII.  Tulare County Economic Development  Mike Washam 

XIV.  Drought Discussion - Update  Secretary Ross 
DeeDee D’Adamo 
Glenda Humiston 

XV.  Public and Board Comment and Meeting Feedback  Board and Public 

 Adjournment  Secretary Ross 

 

2



Meeting of the Board of Directors    DRAFT 
Friday, March 21, 2014, 10am – 3pm 
 
Merced County Fairgrounds, San Joaquin Hall 
900 Martin Luther King Jr. Way 
Merced, CA  95341 
          
 
MEETING MINUTES 

I. Convene Meeting and Introductory Remarks      

The meeting of the California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley (Partnership) was called to 
order at 10:07 am by Chair Ashley Swearengin who welcomed Partnership Board members and 
guests.    

Board Members present:  James Aleru, Lynne Ashbeck, Sharri Ehlert, Steve Bestalorides, Judy 
Case McNairy, Vito Chiesa, DeeDee D’Adamo, Diana Dooley, Mike Dozier, Lee Ann Eager, 
Bryn Forhan, Andrew Genasci, Pat Gordon, Glenda Humiston, Genoveva Islas, Blake Konczal, 
Dorothy Leland, David Long, Brian McMahon, Luisa Medina, Michael Navarro, Joe Oliveira, Billy 
Powell, Larry Powell, Max Rodriguez, Karen Ross, Gary Serrato, Ted Smalley, Mark Starr, 
Ashley Swearengin, James Tague, Robert Tse. 

II. Recognition of Sponsors        

California Assemblymember Adam Gray representing Merced welcomed the board and 
members of the public and members of the Governor’s Drought Task Force. 
 
Merced’s Mayor Stan Thursten welcomed all and applauds the group’s efforts to produce ideas 
to solve the issues of the drought now and for the future. 
 
The board recognized and thanked our sponsor UC Merced, and Dr. Conklin with her 
presentation on the drought.  The board also recognized Merced County Supervisor Hub Walsh. 
 
Introductions were then made from the board and the audience around the room. 
 
III. New Board Member Oath of Office        

New member of the Partnership Board of Directors Gary Serrato was installed by Secretary 
Ross who administered the oath of office.   
 
IV. Public and Board Comment       

Chair Swearengin thanked the Brown Administration and Secretary Dooley for supporting the 
Partnership.   
 

3



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY  MARCH 21 2014 BOARD MEETING  

Secretary Ross assumed her role of Deputy Co-Chair with an ongoing commitment from the 
administration to supporting the work of the Partnership. 
 
V.  Consent Calendar      

Larry Powell moved to accept the consent calendar as published.  Lynne Ashbeck seconded 
and the motion was approved. 
 
OCED staff will serve as concierge to board.  Melanie Allen was bid a fond farewell after more 
than 20 board meetings.  She promised to continue to support the organizations.   
 
VI. Central Valley AgPLUS      

A fact sheet was shared which explains the aim to win federal designation to access up to $1.3 
billion in assistance to accelerate manufacturing job creation and boost investment in the 
Agriculture and Food sector.   
 
Mike Dozier thanked Congressman Costa for taking the lead and getting federal representatives 
to endorse, and also GoBiz and Connie Conway.   
 
ACTION:  Letters of support from board members are needed for submission on April 7. 
 
Glenda Humiston urged everyone to help, as there is no place else that has the mix of 
agriculture and manufacturing that the San Joaquin Valley has.   
 
VII. UC Merced’s Sierra Nevada Research Institute      

Dr. Conklin’s presentation helped explain how most of the water that we use falls on the Sierra 
Nevada and accumulates in the trees and slopes. 50% of our water falls as snow; it is important 
to measure and manage the water from the snow pack.  
 
ACTION:  Dr. Conklin’s presentation to be posted on Partnership website. (Posted March 21, 
2014). 
 
ACTION:  Larry Powell wants this presentation out to students in the 7th grade and up, stating 
that our school students should learn early on to promote water conservation.  Dr. Conklin 
responded that they have been working with the school districts but are willing to do more. 
 
Max Rodriquez stated that the brush build-up is tremendous and it soaks up a lot of water.  He 
asked what actions can be taken to remedy the issue, such as controlled fires and cloud 
seeding.  Dr. Conklin agreed that brush management is very important; but fire is a big concern.  
She is aware of cloud seeding activities but is unsure of the results.     
 
VIII. Governor’s Drought Task Force      

Secretary Ross of the Governor’s Drought Task Force began the panel discussion providing a 
brief history of how the task force was initiated when Governor Brown had an emergency 
declared and directed the Department of Water Resources, the State Water Resources Control 
Board, the California Department of Food and Agriculture and the Office of Emergency Services 

4



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY  MARCH 21 2014 BOARD MEETING  

to work together on real-time monitoring and managing based on temporary urgency measures.  
This has enabled the government to move more swiftly on issues. 
 
Secretary Diana Dooley praised Karen Ross’s leadership on the Drought Task Force and 
discusses the focus on a drinking water program from the Department of Health and Human 
Services, working with partners in the food bank community and helping partners to recognize 
needs due to the drought.  The issue of carryover is stressed, as there needs to be enough 
water released to protect the Delta from salting up, however, if too much water is let go we won’t 
be prepared for another dry year.   
 
DeeDee D’Adamo discussed the drought impact from the State Water Resources Control Board 
and Dr. Mark Starr from the California Department of Public Heath talked about his program 
which operates the public water system for drinking water, working with the environmental 
health system.   
 
There is staff specifically assigned to at-risk systems: those which could run out of water within 
60 days, and also focused on longer term systems to help them avoid getting on the short list. 
All systems on the list are small water systems.  They’re much more vulnerable to drought 
impacts.    
 
IX. Lunch      

Break for quick lunch at 11:55am 
Reconvene at 12:15pm 
 
Dr. Glenda Humiston spoke about the Federal Government’s Drought Response.  The USDA 
emergency board has been meeting regularly and coordinating with the California Department 
of Emergency services.  There are emergency ag loans. The National Resources Conservation 
Service (NRCS) is collaborating with forest service.   
 
Chair Swearengin then encouraged questions and comments from the room to turn the 
conversation towards community interaction with the board. 
 
Genoveva Islas spoke of her concern for people purchasing unhealthy drinks instead of drinking 
water when it’s not as available and of how limited resources may limit the ability to make health 
conscious decisions.  Drought management could provide the opportunity to focus on improving 
situation in the farm communities. 
 
DeeDee D’Adamo stated that drinking water in communities is a top priority across the 
administration which continues to address water recycling and management in the 
disadvantaged communities. 
 
Genoveva Islas asked how to better prepare the farm worker communities to respond to the 
drought, not just subsistence assistance, but job retraining and education opportunities need to 
be a priority. 
 
Blake Konczal addressed this topic with regards to Fresno’s pilot program for Irrigation 
Specialists.  The US Department of Labor passes out money per a formula, however, and farm 
workers are no longer counted in this figure; therefore, there are restrictions in the funds 
received.  A reclassification has resulted in farm worker layoffs not being considered in layoff/job 
loss statistics.  There will be an emergency grant application.   

5



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY  MARCH 21 2014 BOARD MEETING  

 
Supervisor Hub Walsh addressed the board and asked that the discussion go beyond surface 
water to ground water, believing that there may be more regulations and legislation about it.  He 
would like those issues to stay local and not go to the state.  DeeDee answered that the board 
is focused on the ground water issue, plus surface water and water conveyance.  There is a 
need to protect water quality in state and there is clear authority to step in and help communities 
work through the issues 
 
Our board is focusing the issue of what needs to be done to properly manage the ground water.  
What is the appropriate role for the state to step in temporarily for management?    Karen Ross 
answered that it is difficult to make sound, long term policy in the middle of a crisis and there is 
a need to think about replenishing water in the good times, too.   
 
Luisa Mediana cautioned not to ignore the fact that many of the farm workers have been out of 
work for a long time, therefore housing, utilities – all are big issues.  Blake Konczal says they 
need to be eligible for opportunities. 
 
X.  San Joaquin Valley Water Supply Overview      

Sarge Green from the California Water Institute presented a program outlining the San Joaquin 
Valley Water Supply.  He believes that this drought will cause groups of people to ask for help 
who have never had to before.  There are emergency declaration options in place that offer a 
set of reasonable alternatives and flexibility for working with the Endangered Species Act.  The 
pumping efficiency program is another tool for the water community. 
 
David Long of the Merced Irrigation District said that there will be massive increases in 
groundwater pumping and power generation will be dramatically impacted by the loss of 
hydrostatic generation.  Karen Ross replied that this will be monitored. 
 
DeeDee D’Adamo discussed options.  There are two bills currently being introduced:  one 
through Senator Dianne Feinstein to select alternatives, and another bill from Congressman 
Devin Nunez which would make some more significant adjustments.  Due to the timing of the 
bills, nothing is expected to come out of the federal legislator in time to do anything this year.  
The only thing that can help now is working through changes in the endangered species act, as 
this is an emergency. 
 
XI. Roundtable Discussion and Public Health Impacts     

Amanda Carvajal, Executive Director from the Merced County Farm Bureau, spoke about the 
implications for agriculture, stating that although applied water has gone down 14%, the volume 
of farm production has gone up.  Farmers are able to manage their operations better, but are 
still in need of long-term solutions.   
 
American Ag Credit’s Stephen Moitozo from Merced warned that food prices will increase 
across all states from this drought, and the ripples will be a tsunami in communities like 
Mendota which is full of farm workers.  Farmers, ranchers and dairymen in the Valley have to 
make many decisions about purchasing and investing.  Instability and volatility means business 
people have to hold back in everything.  Lending institutions like stability.   
 
Victor Lopez of Orange Cove spoke out about his city’s devastation, stating that farm workers 
are the community and something needs to be done for them.   

6



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY  MARCH 21 2014 BOARD MEETING  

 
Larry Powell stated that stability is necessary for a student’s success.  Family layoffs lead to 
instability. Schools lose funding and programs and students. The better qualified teachers will 
leave to go to more stable areas and there is a loss of aid and resources in the community when 
the numbers decrease.   
 
Ms. Swearengin invited Tom Smith from E&J Gallo to comment on the situation as a food and 
beverage processor in the Valley. 
 
XII. Public and Board Comments    

Chair. Swearengin challenged all to bring direction on how we can be most helpful.   
 
Cruz Ramos from the City of San Joaquin expressed the need for skills and expertise for help.  
Need help of companies that are being innovative as well.   
 
ACTION:  Lee Ann Eager from the EDC added that ETP has funds for drought relief and will 
work to schedule training after April.   
 
ACTION:  California Roundtable for Food and Water Supply – send out to Board/post on 
website. 
 
ACTION:  Lynne Ashbeck suggested a “Sister City” incubator to link local resources and 
expertise. 
 
Mary Renner said conservation education is needed for employers and employees.   
 
Mike Dozier said that the Rural Development Center is already in place in Orange Cove and 
also in San Joaquin with the RBEG grant.  Perhaps it can be done bigger and better. 
 
Brian McMahon reiterated the importance of the investment in job training and workforce 
solutions. 
 
Andrew Genasci said we need to find a workaround for the Delta project.  Need better 
management on watershed issue to work against tomorrow’s drought today. 
 
Bryn says that everyone is impacted and we have to look at key things to push and move to 
make happen. 
 
XIII. Adjournment      

The meeting was adjourned at 3:09pm.   
 

7



 

CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, JUN 20, 2014  

Secretariat Report 
June 2014 

Message from Lead Executive 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Mike Dozier 

 
The attached Secretariat Report is intended to give you an update of Partnership activity during the last 
three months. Staff has provided for you the following: 
 
• Communication activities including outreach efforts and meetings, information distribution, media 

efforts 
• Smart Valley Places Final Update 
• Rural Development Center Update 
• Housing Collaborative Update 
• Regional Broadband Consortium Update 
• Community & Regional Planning Center Update  
• Regional Industry Clusters Update 
 

8



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, JUN 20, 2014  

Communications Update  
March 2014 through May 2014 

Staff Outreach Efforts 
Date Event 

4-Mar-14 Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Program 

5-Mar-14 Radio Bilingue Show -Broadband Access to Rural Communities in San Joaquin Valley 

6-Mar-14 City of Avenal – Parent University Community Partnership (Avenal) 

6-Mar-14 City of Taft – Partnership for Affordable Broadband to community members 

6-Mar-14 MEWA Advisory Committee Meeting 

6-Mar-14 Teleconference with Taft Community College to discuss digital literacy  and 
broadband expansion, Taft 

6-Mar-14 Tools for Business Success Online Demonstration with City of Orange Cove 

7-Mar-14 IMCP Designation Meeting 

7-Mar-14 Meeting with City of Orange Cove to discuss partnership on USDA RBEG grant 

7-Mar-14 Meeting with Tule River Tribe to explore opportunities to provide GIS training to the 
Tribe 

10-Mar-14 Central California iHub Working Committee 

10-Mar-14 Meeting with City of Madera to Explore Partnership with Fresno State SBDC 
(Madera) 

11-Mar-14 Fresno Business Council Board Meeting 

11-Mar-14 iHub State Meeting 

11-Mar-14 Meeting with City of Livingston to discuss broadband and Community and Regional 
Planning Center, Livingston 

12-Mar-14 Central Valley Business Incubator Board Meeting 

13-Mar-14 City of Orange Cove – Parent University Community Partnership (Orange Cove) 

3-14-14 Meeting with Youth Centers of America (YCA) – Neighborhood College Partnership 
(Parlier) 

18-Mar-14 City of Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Session (Orange Cove) 

18-Mar-14 Fresno County Hunger Count–Food Distribution for Rural Fresno County 
Communities 

18-Mar-14 Site visit with San Diego Metro – YCA Neighborhood College Partnership (Parlier) 

19-Mar-14 City of Parlier – Financial Services Technical Assistance (Parlier) 

20-Mar-14 City of Firebaugh – Parent University Community Partnership (Firebaugh)  

20-Mar-14 Conducted Economic Development Surveys in the City of Parlier (Parlier) 

20-Mar-14 Meeting with Firebaugh Business Association – Organizational Technical Assistance 

20-Mar-14 Site visit with Board of State and Community Corrections on behalf of City of Parlier 
(Parlier) 

9



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, JUN 20, 2014  

Staff Outreach Efforts 
Date Event 

24-Mar-14 California City Economic Development Strategy Introduction Meeting 

25-Mar-14 San Joaquin Valley Clean Cities Coalition (Fresno) 

27-Mar-14 IMCP Designation Strategy Meeting - Sacramento 

28-Mar-14 Ridgecrest Economic Development Strategy Introduction Meeting 

1-Apr-14 Conference Call with City of San Joaquin to discuss City website improvements 

1-Apr-14 Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Advisory Committee 

2-Apr-14 Fresno County Hunger Count–Food Distribution for Rural Fresno County 
Communities 

1-Apr-14 Radio Bilinque, discuss broadband availability, Fresno 

3-Apr-14 City of Oakley Economic Development Manager Interview Panel 

7-Apr-14 California Association for Local Economic Development 34th Annual Training 
Conference, April 7-9 

7-Apr-14 California Association of Local Economic Development (CALED) Annual Conference – 
Sacramento, Apr 7-9 

8-Apr-14 Fresno County Hunger Count–Food Distribution for Rural Fresno County 
Communities 

9-Apr-14 University Economic Development Association (UEDA) Spring Conference – Santa Fe 

11-Apr-14 City of Parlier – Parent University Community Partnership (Parlier) 

11-Apr-14 Fresno County Hunger Count–Food Distribution for Rural Fresno County 
Communities 

15-Apr-14 City of Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Session (Orange Cove) 

15-Apr-14 Health and Wellness Cluster Meeting 

15-Apr-14 Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Advisory Committee 

15-Apr-14 Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Program 

15-Apr-14 Regional Broadband Consortium quarterly meeting 

17-Apr-14 Central California iHub Meeting – Fresno 

18-Apr-14 Governor Brown Slingshot Program Meeting – Fresno 

21-Apr-14 Fresno County Hunger Count–Food Distribution for Rural Fresno County 
Communities 

22-Apr-14 City of Orange Cove – Parent University Community Partnership Senior Center 
(Orange Cove) 

22-Apr-14 Easton Public Community Meeting: Water - A Community Vision (Easton) 

22-Apr-14 Fresno County Hunger Count–Food Distribution for Rural Fresno County 
Communities 

22-Apr-14 Keynote Speech – Industrial Technology Annual Meeting – Fresno State 

23-Apr-14 Fresno County Hunger Count–Food Distribution for Rural Fresno County 
Communities 

10



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, JUN 20, 2014  

Staff Outreach Efforts 
Date Event 

25-Apr-14 Meeting with City of Ridgecrest Mayor Pro Tem to Discuss Regional Economic 
Development Strategy (Fresno) 

27-Apr-14 Tennessee Basic Economic Development Course (Audit) – Nashville, TN 

28-Apr-14 Affirmatively furthering fair housing training, Fresno 

4-29-14 Conference Call with City of San Joaquin to discuss City website improvements 

30-Apr-14 Prosperity Project Final Meeting – Milwaukee, WI 

1-May-14 Provided a GIS Training Workshop for the Tule River Tribe (Fresno) 

2-May-14 Conducted Economic Development Surveys in Woodlake (Woodlake) 

2-May-14 Free Grant Writing Training Workshop (Merced) 

5-May-14 City of Taft Economic Development Strategy Update Meeting – Taft 

5-May-14 Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Advisory Committee 

6-May-14 City of Sanger – Parent University Community Partnership (Sanger) 

6-May-14 Greater Taft Economic Development Authority – Economic Development Strategy 
Progress Meeting (Taft) 

7-May-14 World Heritage Animal Genetic Repository Institute ( WHAGR ) Project Conference 
Call 

8-May-14 International Center for Water Technology Conference – Clovis 

13-May-14 IDEA Conference – Ridgecrest 

15-May-14 Energy Development & Transmission Conference - West Hills College 

15-May-14 UC Merced Regional Small Business Awards – Fresno 

16-May-14 Fresno County Hunger Count–Food Distribution for Rural Fresno County 
Communities 

16-May-14 SBDC Technology Manager Interview Panel – Fresno 

20-May-14 Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Advisory Committee 

20-May-14 Presentation to City Council of California City for Economic Development Services 
(California City) 

30-May-14 Free Grant Writing Training Workshop (Modesto) 

3-Jun-14 Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Program 

12-Jun-14 Regional Broadband Consortia call 

17-Jun-14 Orange Cove Economic Development Strategy Program 

 

Electronic Information Distribution 

Date E-Blast 

25-Feb-14 REXPO X 

11-Mar-14 Broadband: Comcast Update 

11



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, JUN 20, 2014  

Electronic Information Distribution 
Date E-Blast 

17-Mar-14 Public Announcement: California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley Meeting 

18-Mar-14 Newsletter: Partnership Progress, March 2014 

27-Mar-14 Weekly Drought Update 

1-Apr-14 2014 Water Technology Conference 

2-Apr-14 Weekly Drought Update 

3-Apr-14 Newsletter: SJV Regional Broadband Consortium, March 2014 

7-Apr-14 Weekly Drought Update 

8-Apr-14 SJV Regional Broadband Consortium Meeting Announcement - April 15 

14-Apr-14 SJV Regional Broadband Consortium Meeting Reminder - April 15 

15-Apr-14 2014 Water Technology Conference 

15-Apr-14 Weekly Drought Update 

17-Apr-14 Fresno Workforce Investment Board Upcoming Events 

22-Apr-14 Weekly Drought Update 

29-Apr-14 Weekly Drought Update 

1-May-14 2014 Water Technology Conference 

6-May-14 Weekly Drought Update 

13-May-14 Weekly Drought Update 

20-May-14 Weekly Drought Update 

27-May-14 Weekly Drought Update 

3-Jun-14 Weekly Drought Update 

10-Jun-14 Weekly Drought Update 

13-Jun-14 Newsletter: Partnership Progress, March 2014 

16-Jun-14 Public Announcement: California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley Meeting 

17-Jun-14 Weekly Drought Update 

Communications Tools 
 
Partnership Website 

The Partnership website is updated on a regular basis. At the March 2014 board meeting, it was 
requested that the board be kept apprised of drought information from the State of California. Drought 
updates, and the link to the state’s drought website, are posted in the Feature section of the website 
homepage. Drought communications sent on a weekly basis through eblasts are linked to the website. In 
addition, board meetings and other Partnership-related events are refreshed in the Events section. 
 

12



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, JUN 20, 2014  

 Annual Report 

The 2013 Partnership Annual Report is completed and covers the time period of July 1, 2012, through 
June 3, 2013. The 2013 report was produced in-house by Secretariat staff. It is currently available on the 
Partnership website in the Document Library. We are currently in the process of creating the 2014 report. 
 
You may download the annual report by clicking the link below: 
http://sjvpartnership.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/2013_PartnershipAnnualReport.pdf. 
 
e-Newsletter 

Distribution occurs quarterly one week prior to the next scheduled board meeting. The latest issue was 
distributed on June 13, 2014. The newsletter reports on the Partnership’s initiatives and collaboratives 
and is sent to all Partnership stakeholders (2,171).  
 
Media 

Traditional methods of communication efforts with the media include press releases, media advisories, 
and editorial content and interviews. In addition, Partnership activities have been picked up by Valley 
news agencies. See following table for recent activity.  

 

Date Description 

17-Mar-14 Media Advisory: California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley Board Meeting 

12-May-14 Press Release: CivicSpark, an AmerCorps Program 

14-May-14 The Business Journal: Fresno State office tapped for climate change initiative 

16-Jun-14 Media Advisory: California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley Board Meeting 

 
Partnership social marketing efforts include Facebook and Twitter accounts. The Partnership Facebook 
page now has 479“fans” and is linked to Facebook pages of several partner organizations. 

13

http://sjvpartnership.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/12/2013_PartnershipAnnualReport.pdf


Friday • September 19 • 2014

Pioneer CitizenSteward AdvocateChampion

$20,000 $10,000 $5,000 $2,500 $1,000Sponsor Acknowledgement

Opportunities
Sponsorship

Contact   •   Mike Dozier, Lead Executive   •   Main 559-294-6021  Cell 559-696-2524   •   mdozier@csufresno.edu

Vendor Display Table (table, 2 chairs, tablecloth)

Recognized verbally at event

Logo featured on front cover of event program

Logo projected on event screen loop

Name projected on screen loop

Name listed inside event program

4 tickets to Summit, includes seats at luncheon

2 tickets to Summit, includes seats at luncheon

Full color advertisement opportunity
on back inside program cover

Logo included in all marketing materials,
on event website

Name listed in all marketing materials,
on event website

Two tables of 8 at Summit luncheon
16 tickets to Summit
One table of 8 at Summit luncheon
8 tickets to Summit

14



 

 

Initiative: Smart Valley Places 
June 2014 
 

Quarter: 2nd Quarter 2014 
 

Staff Lead: Stacie Dabbs 
 

Update: Smart Valley Places – Grant End 
 

Smart Valley Places as funded by HUD in FY2010, concluded on April 30, 2014. The following is a list of 
deliverables across our 19 subcontracted partners: 

City of Lodi 
• Climate Action Plan 
• Development Code Update 
• Lower Mokelumne River Watershed User’s 

Guide 
City of Stockton 
• Climate Action Plan 
City of Manteca 
• General Plan Update 
• Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan 
• Climate Action Plan 
City of Modesto 
• General Plan Amendments to Land Use and 

Circulation Elements 
City of Turlock  
• Zoning Regulations Update 
City of Merced 
• Form Based Zoning Code 
City of Madera 
• Recycled Water Feasibility Study 
• Water System Master Plan 
• Storm Drainage System Master Plan 
• Sanitary Sewer System Master Plan 
City of Clovis 
• General Plan Update: land Use and Economic 

Development Elements 

City of Fresno 
• General Plan, Development Code and MEIR 

Update 
City of Hanford 
• Downtown East Precise Plan 
City of Visalia 
• General Plan Update 
• Climate Action Plan 
• Community Workshops for GP Update 
• Community Newsletter for GP Update 
City of Tulare 
• Transit Oriented Development Study 
City of Porterville 
• Economic Development Strategic Plan 
City of Delano 
• Green Building Ordinance 
• Health and Sustainability Element 
Central California Regional Obesity Prevention 
Program  
• Community Leadership Institutes 
American Farmland Trust 
• Groundswell Website 
Local Government Commission 
• Elected Official Outreach 
California Coalition for Rural Housing  
• Fair Housing and Equity Assessment 

 
Moving forward, the consortium will no longer meet formally, but the network that was created through 
this project will continue to communicate as opportunities to continue incorporating the Blueprint 
principles at the local level arise.  Future activities will be coordinated through the Community and 
Regional Planning Center at Fresno State. 

15



 

 

Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Rural Development Center 
June 2014 
 
Quarter: 2nd Quarter 2014 
 
Staff Lead: Ismael Díaz Herrera 
 
Update: Assisted 40 different rural entities and participated in 46 community events 
 
Small Communities Network 
May 2nd: in partnership with non-profit Business Education Technology Enterprise, delivered free grant-
writing training workshop in Merced, CA to 15 individuals representing 6 non-profit organizations in 
Merced and Stanislaus Counties.  
May 30th: in partnership with United Way of Stanislaus County, delivered free grant-writing training 
workshop in Modesto, CA to 22 individuals representing 17 non-profit organizations in Stanislaus 
County. Both Beginner and Advanced/Intermediate tracks were offered. 
[UPCOMING] August 1st: in partnership with the Northern California Community Loan Fund and Federal 
Reserve Bank of San Francisco, workshop will be delivered in the City of Chowchilla to provide 
information on New Market Tax Credits and other funding sources for community projects. 
[UPCOMING] August 15th: in partnership with City of California City, free grant-writing workshop will be 
delivered to 20-25 individuals representing communities and non-profits in Eastern Kern County.  
 
Weekly newsletter continues to be distributed to the region’s rural/small community stakeholders. 
Newsletter contains information on available funding, upcoming events, reports/studies, job openings, 
rural-specific news stories, and an ongoing inventory of tools and resources. 
 
USDA Pathways to Rural Economic Progress – San Joaquin Valley 
City of Orange Cove: conducted 6 economic development strategy sessions with ad hoc committee; 
sessions began February 4th and will continue onto 3rd Quarter 2014.  
City of Parlier: 1) surveyed small business community to determine needs, gaps and opportunities; 2) 
sponsored 1-year subscription to Tools for Business Success platform for City website; and 3) provided 
fiscal management technical assistance.  
City of San Joaquin: 1) surveyed small business community to determine needs, gaps and opportunities; 
2) sponsored 1-year subscription to Tools for Business Success platform for City website; and 3) 
sponsored City website upgrade and technical assistance for content management and maintenance. 
City of Taft: participated in the Greater Taft Economic Development Authority’s 1-year economic 
development strategy progress check-in meeting on May 6th. 
City of Woodlake: 1) surveyed small business community to determine needs, gaps and opportunities. 
 
Parent University-Digital Literacy Trainings 
Partnership with local school districts and senior centers to provide digital literacy training to local 
parents/seniors was completed during the week of June 2-6. A total of 190 training sessions were 
delivered to approximately 297 parents/seniors between March 24th and June 6th. Digital literacy 
trainings were delivered at the following school and senior center sites: 

16



 

• Parlier Unified School District: Cesar E. Chavez Elementary School, John C. Martinez Elementary 
School, Matthew J. Brletic Elementary School, S. Ben Benavidez Elementary School, Parlier 
Junior High School, Parlier High School (120 parents served) 

• Reef-Sunset Unified School District: Tamarack Elementary School, Avenal Elementary School, 
Kettleman City Elementary School (75 parents served) 

• Coalinga-Huron Unified School District: Huron Middle School (77 parents served)  
• City of Orange Cove: Eduardo “Lalo” Espinoza Senior Center (25 seniors served) 

 
Submitted Grant Proposals 
USDA Rural Business Opportunity Grant: in partnership with City of Orange Cove and Fresno Economic 
Opportunities Commission prepared and submitted $50,000 proposal to fund development of ‘Buy 
Local’ campaign, deliver small business training workshops, and build capacity of Orange Cove Chamber 
of Commerce.   
USDA Farmers’ Market Promotion Program: prepared and submitted $100,000 proposal to assist Biola 
Chamber of Commerce, Westside Youth (Mendota, CA) and Los Promotores (Firebaugh, CA) with 
promotion of their local farmers’ markets.  
 
Communications 
SJVRDC staff participated in a March 5th Radio Bilingüe (91.5 FM) broadcast to provide information on 
broadband access in rural communities.  
 
Staff provided information on SJVRDC services/resources to attendees of the statewide California 
Association for Local Economic Development 34th Annual Training Conference in Sacramento, CA April 
4th-7th.  
 
The State Center Community College District’s Center for International Trade Development co-branded 
it’s Executive Export Seminar Series with the SJVRDC logo. 

17



 

 

Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Housing Collaborative 
June 2014 
 
Quarter: 2nd Quarter 2014 
 
Staff Lead: Stacie Dabbs 
 
Update:  
 
• New Board Member 

The Housing Collaborative board recently welcomed its newest board member, Kristi 
Rhea, compliance officer and asset manager with the Housing Authority of the County of 
San Joaquin. She replaced outgoing board member, Barbara Kauss, also with the Housing 
Authority.  

• Board Retreat 
At the first quarter board of directors meeting, it was decided the Collaborative was in 
need of a board retreat and strategic planning session. The Collaborative is working with 
California Coalition for Rural Housing and facilitator Ron Dwyer-Voss with Pacific 
Community Solutions, for a day long retreat. The goal of the retreat is to develop a 
mission, vision and strategic goals for the Collaborative moving forward. This event is 
scheduled for July 10, 2014. 

• Annual Affordable Housing Summit  
The board recently adopted a proposal from the California Coalition for Rural Housing to 
lead the planning efforts around the 3rd annual Affordable Housing Summit. The event will 
take place in the central San Joaquin Valley in November 2014.  

• New representative for the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco 
In late 2013, Darryl Rutherford accepted a new position as the Executive Director of the 
Sacramento Housing Alliance. Recently, Leilani Barnett was hired as the new Regional 
Manager for Community Development in the San Joaquin Valley and great Sacramento 
area.  

18



 

 

 
 

Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium 
June 2014 
 
Quarter: 2nd Quarter 2014 
 
Staff Lead: Jason Waters 
 

Update:  

The San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium staff continues its efforts to increase 
and improve broadband adoption in the Central Valley. As part of these efforts, staff held its a 
Regional Broadband Consortium (RBC) meeting with stakeholders to discuss the status of 
broadband in the Central Valley. At this meeting staff discussed the desired outcomes and 
status of the 3 broadband workgroups (Infrastructure, Telehealth, Education).  At the meeting 
staff also discussed broadband expansion strategies in rural areas and policies that could allow 
for the efficient expansion of broadband. 
 
Staff also attended the CASF Annual Learning Summit in Sacramento on March 3rd and 4th. At 
the Summit, staff gave a presentation identifying the underserved and unserved communities 
in the Valley that are in greatest need of improved broadband access. Staff also continues to 
maintain a section of their website to communicate Consortium information and identify areas 
where broadband service is not available.   
 
For the digital literacy portion of the consortium, SJVRBC and several regional partners continue 
work on the CETF Get Connected! grant aimed at increasing first time broadband subscriptions 
via increased digital literacy trainings.  
 
Staff is also attempting to collect broadband speed and availability data in order to update the 
California Interactive Broadband Map (http://www.broadbandmap.ca.gov/).  As part of this effort 
staff will distribute surveys to determine the quality and location of broadband service in the 
Valley. The information from these surveys will be sent to the California Public Utilities 
Commission and will be used to update the Broadband Map.  
 
 
 
 

19

http://www.broadbandmap.ca.gov/


 

 

 
Initiative:  Community & Regional Planning Center 
June 2014 
 
Quarter: 2nd Quarter 2014 
 
Staff Lead: Jason Waters, Director 
 
Update:  
 
Staff at the Community and Regional Planning Center (CRPC) continues to work closely with local 
communities and Fresno State University in an attempt to improve planning and development in the 
region. As part of these efforts staff provided technical planning assistance to local jurisdictions and 
worked with Fresno State on a number of planning activities. 
 
This quarter the CRPC met with a number of local cities and conducted business retention surveys in 
their communities. These surveys will be used to assess the business climate in each community and 
determine if there are opportunities for the community to improve its relationships with local 
businesses. The surveys and accompanying report will also identify funding opportunities for each city. 
 
CRPC staff also participated in a committee tasked with developing a Master of City and Regional 
Planning at Fresno State. The proposed Master’s degree program is in the early planning stages and the 
committee recently began to conduct outreach with local planners to determine how the program could 
meet the needs of local planners and the community. 
 
CRPC staff continues to manage the Fresno State Urban and Regional Transformation Cohort (URT 
Cohort).  During the URT Cohort’s 1st quarter meeting, the Cohort discussed sustainable transportation 
options for the region and discussed outreach opportunities for the Cohort.  
 
CRPC staff also attended a number of Regional Planning Agencies’ Directors’ Committee meetings this 
quarter and updated the directors’ on the Partnership’s activities. The CRPC also attended and 
participated in the Greenprint Steering Committee meetings and discussed the potential next steps for 
the first phase of the Greenprint process. As part of these meetings, the CRPC helped identified 
outreach strategies and discussed the types of data that should be displayed on the maps that were 
created through the Greenprint process. 

CRPC staff also attended the Valley Planner’s Network meetings and coordinated with the Central 
Section of the American Planning Association. CRPC staff continues to update the online "Planners 
Toolkit" with planning documents and templates related to smart growth.   

 

20



 

 

ADMINISTERED BY 

Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Industry Clusters 
June 2014 
 
Quarter: 2nd Quarter 2014 
 
Staff Lead: Silas Cha 
 
The Clean Energy Cluster held the On-Site Energy Generation and Sustainability Conference on Feb 28, 
2014. About 100 people attended the event; half of participants were high school students. Four 
scholarships were awarded to four outstanding and promising students who plan to pursue a career in 
alternative fuels and energy. A mentoring session was held with nine mentors matched with 35 students 
– career path, satisfaction, and networking strategies. 
 
The Manufacturing, Energy, Water, and Agriculture Clusters (MEWA) met as one cluster on Feb 6, 2014. 
Its next quarterly meeting is June 2014; cluster champions plan to have more private partners at the 
table. Upcoming meetings may be held in the North Valley or South Valley. 
 
On March 19, 2014, in Bakersfield, RICI staff participated in Energize California, an event sponsored by 
Hispanics in Energy and the American Association of Blacks in Energy. The event focused on how 
minorities (women and people of color) could form stronger partnerships with schools, the private 
sector, and other educational institutions to prepare themselves with a STEM curriculum to enter the 
energy job market.  
 
The Health and Wellness Cluster Advisory Committee met on April 15, 2014. Next steps include a 
concept paper stating the “ask” so that partners would not have to redevelop a basis for grant 
templates. Health issues related to uninsured and undocumented individuals are primary challenges. A 
conference in fall 2014 is still a possibility. 

21



 

 

Networking 
 
Date Event 

3/6/14 Convened the Manufacturing, Energy, Water, and Ag (MEWA) clusters 

3/10/14 Meeting with Deborah Ikeda, SCCCD, Willow International Center 

3/10/14 iHub new strategies meeting with UC Merced, SBDC, Fresno State SBDC, WET Center 

3/11/14 Monthly Go-Biz conference call 

3/12/14 Meeting with Keith Bergthold, Metro Ministry 

3/14/14 Clean Energy Cluster meeting; follow-up regarding Feb 28 On-Site Energy Conference 

3/18/14 City of Orange Cove Economic Development Strategies Program 

3/19/14 Participation, “Energize California,” hosted by Hispanics in Energy and American 
Association of Blacks in Energy, Bakersfield 

3/20/14 Water Cluster Quarterly Meeting  

3/25/14 Meeting with Geri Yang, Wells Fargo  

3/27/14 Meeting with IMCP Northern State partners, Sacramento 

3/27/14 Conference call with Chip Holloway, City of Ridgecrest; discuss Economic 
Development Strategies Program 

4/1/14 City of Orange Cove Economic Development Strategies Program 

4/2/14 Participation, SJV Energy Roundtable Discussion regarding economic development 

4/4/14 Monthly meeting conference call, Chico State, Sandy Linville and Michael Suplita  

4/4/14 Meeting with Carlos Mendoza, Small Business Administration 

4/7/14 Meeting with IMCP partners, Sacramento met with IMCP partners in Sacramento 

4/8/14 Monthly Go-Biz conference call 

4/8/14 Meeting with Nathaniel Brown, Boys and Men of Color, United Way of Fresno 

4/15/14 Health and Wellness Cluster meeting 

4/15/14 City of Orange Cove Economic Development Strategies Program 

4/17/14 Meeting with iHub Partners 

4/18/14 Participation, Governor Brown’s Slingshot Project meeting 

4/30/14 Meeting with Ronald Arrington, consultant, RICI champion 

4/30/14 Meeting with Bobby Vang, Asian Village Shopping Center 

4/30/14 Meeting with Nick Cha, program manager, Hmong National Development 

5/8/14 Attendance, Water Tech Conference, hosted by International Center for Water 
Technology 

5/9/14 Meeting with Francie Finn, Ramsay Group 

5/12/14 Participation, Central Valley iHub meeting 

5/13/14 Meeting with Nhia Yeu Cha, Hmong TV USA; needs assistance from SJV Rural 
Development Center for nonprofit status application 

5/14/14 Meeting with Richard Kalashian regarding Ag Cluster development 

22



 

 

Date Event 

5/1514 Meeting with Chico State - Sandy Linville, Dan Ripke, and Michael Suplita; 
preparation for economic development activities presentation in Seattle, Wash., in 
June 

5/19/14 Presentation to City of California City regarding economic development strategies 
program 

5/20/14 City of Orange Cove Economic Development Strategies Program 

5/21/14 Participation, SJV Community Reinvestment Act Collaborative, quarterly conference 
call 

5/22/14 Clean Energy Cluster meeting; prep for events in summer/fall 

5/29/14 Participation, “Equity and Fair Housing” webinar, presented by Federal Reserve Bank 
of San Francisco and California Coalition for Rural Housing 

6/3/14 City of Orange Cove Economic Development Strategies Program 

6/5/14 Participation, Water, Energy, and Technology Center Open House 

6/6/14 Conference call with Chico State - Sandy Linville and Michael Suplita 

6/12/14 Participation, “Energize the Valley,” Coalinga 

6/17/14 City of Orange Cove Economic Development Strategies Program 

 

23



 

  

Work Group Reports 

June 2014 

 

Work Group Page No. 

Advanced Communications Services 25 

Air Quality 26 

Economic Development 28 

Energy 29 

Health & Human Services 30 

Higher Education & Workforce Development  

Higher Education 31 

Workforce Development 34 

Housing 35 

Pre-K12 Education 36 

Sustainable Communities 38 

Water Quality, Supply & Reliability 39 
 

24



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Advanced Communications Services 

OCED Staff Liaison Jason Waters 
  

Lead Organization(s) OCED 

Lead Organization Contact Jason Waters 
  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 (Jan-Mar) 
 
 
San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium staff continues its efforts to increase and improve broadband 
adoption in the Central Valley. As part of these efforts, staff held a quarterly Regional Broadband Consortium (RBC) 
meeting with stakeholders to discuss the status of broadband in the Central Valley. At this meeting staff discussed the 
desired outcomes and status of the 3 broadband workgroups (Infrastructure, Telehealth, Education).  Staff also tracked 
the status and implementation of broadband legislation in California (SB 740 and AB 1299) and provided updates to the 
RBC. Staff continues to maintain a section of their website to communicate Consortium information.  
 
Staff also provided and received updates on a monthly California Public Utilities Commission phone call and engaged in 
conversations with other broadband consortia where applicable. These calls included discussions related to the State’s 
broadband mapping efforts which includes interactive broadband availability map, speed tests, and surveys through 
various networks including: SJV Partnership, SJV Rural Development Center’s Small Community Network, etc. Staff 
continues to update our research data on affordable connections to broadband and will integrate this data into our 
planning efforts and the State’s broadband mapping efforts. 
 
Staff also attended the CASF Annual Learning Summit in Sacramento on March 3rd and 4th. At the Summit, staff gave a 
presentation identifying the underserved and unserved communities in the Valley that are in greatest need of improved 
broadband access. 
 
Staff continues work on the CETF Get Connected! grant. This grant provides targeted digital literacy training with a focus 
on first time broadband adoption in rural and urban parts of the valley.  The CETF Get Connected! grant provides digital 
literacy training to individuals who have not previous subscribed to the Internet, thereby fostering demand in 
underserved and disadvantaged communities. Staff provided digital literacy training in a number of Valley cities and has 
used these trainings as an opportunity to increase broadband adoption. Progress and results from the CETF Get 
Connected! Grant work are being recorded and implemented into the Deployment plan. This includes strategies to 
increase broadband subscriptions by residents in unserved and underserved rural communities. 
 

25



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Air Quality 

OCED Staff Liaison Stacie Dabbs 
  

Lead Organization(s) San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 

Lead Organization Contact Jaime Holt 
  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 (Jan-Mar) 
 
Valley’s 1-hour ozone attainment 
For the first time in recorded history, in 2013, the Valley had zero violations of the 1-hour ozone standard established by 
EPA under the federal Clean Air Act. On May 6, 2014, the SVJAPCD submitted a formal request to the U.S. EPA for a 
determination that the Valley has attained the federal 1-hour ozone standard. This historic accomplishment reaffirms 
the effectiveness of the investment and commitment by Valley businesses and residents to reduce emissions and 
improve public health. 
 
Drought Related Air Quality Impacts 
The District has been approached for assistance with unusual drought-related situations several times in recent months. 
Water delivery systems are being modified to move water in ways not previously considered, water-well drilling activity 
is at an all-time high, and water used for dust suppression is becoming scarcer. Among the potential air quality impacts 
on the Valley discussed are increased particulate emissions from significantly increased fallowed land and reduced water 
for dust suppression; the potential for overwhelming air quality impacts from wildfires; and increased NOx and other 
pollutants from internal combustion engines used for irrigation, and for municipal and agricultural water transfers. 
Regarding economic impacts, one water agency industry group estimates up to $5 billion losses to the Valley’s 
agriculture economy, in direct costs to farmers and associated indirect losses to farm workers, processing plants and 
other ag-related economic sectors. In light of these impacts, the SJVAPCD Governing Board: 
1. Directed staff to implement the following measures developed by the District to address air quality requirements 

related to drought-relief projects during the current emergency: 
o Expedite permitting processes for temporary installation of generators to produce power to run electric pumps 

for which the utility has not yet been able to deliver electric service. 
o Expedite local portable equipment registration options for projects failing to find suitable engines under the 

state portable equipment registration program. 
o Enter into and execute timely Voluntary Emission Reduction Agreements (VERAs) to mitigate air quality impacts 

from urgent drought relief projects, upon APCO approval and Governing Board Chair signature. 
2. Authorized the Chair to send a letter to governor supporting requests by lead agencies under the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) to expand the governor’s Drought Emergency Executive Order to waive CEQA 
requirements for specific drought-relief projects. 

3. Directed staff to support water districts and farmers by providing material assistance, education, and consultation in 

26



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

finding cost-effective and expeditious options to satisfy applicable air quality requirements. 
4. Directed staff to work with affected agricultural operations to promote the use of currently available, less water-

intensive measures to comply with the District’s Conservation Management Practices (CMP) regulations, to develop 
additional dust-control measures, if necessary, and to work with the agricultural community to streamline methods 
to revise existing CMP plans. 

5. Authorized the Executive Director/APCO to investigate potential streamlining changes to the District’s Portable 
Equipment Registration rule, as necessary for emergency actions, and to prepare such amendments for the 
Governing Board’s consideration through an expedited rule-development process. 

 
Pilot Program for Replacing High-Polluting Vehicles 
The Governing Board approved up to $100,000 for a pilot program to replace high-polluting vehicles in the Valley’s 
disadvantaged communities. This pilot will utilize the District’s existing Tune-In Tune-Up weekend repair events to 
identify suitable candidates for replacement. Targeted vehicles will be identified using several key criteria, including 
model year, registration status, and emissions level. In lieu of vehicle repair, owners of identified vehicles will be offered 
up to $5,000 to retire their existing vehicles and replace those vehicles with newer, cleaner vehicles from a participating 
dealership. Based on the lessons learned from this pilot study, the District will then develop a comprehensive vehicle 
replacement program with a focus on disadvantaged communities throughout the Valley. Members of the state 
legislature and the California Air Resources Board will be observing the District’s pilot program with great interest and 
have expressed desire to use the District’s program as a model for crafting enhancement to the state’s fleet 
modernization program. Additionally, with a successful pilot program the District expects to secure a significant portion 
of the $3 million currently available through State AB118 funding.  
 
Annual Air Toxins Report 
The Air District released the annual air toxins report, which describes efforts undertaken to reduce air toxins from 
existing sources of pollution and to prevent the creation of new air toxic risks from new and expanding facilities. The 
District implements an efficient air toxics program that integrates local, state and federal air toxics mandates. Under the 
program, the District has quantified toxic emissions and performed public health risk analysis for more than 5,900 
facilities in the Valley.  For facilities that were initially designated as high-risk facilities, the District held neighborhood 
meetings to communicate potential risk to the neighbors, discuss potential means for reducing risk and receive public 
input. All high-risk facilities implemented risk-reduction measures and there are no longer any facilities in the San 
Joaquin Valley that are considered high risk. The District continues to track potential toxic emissions and health risk from 
all facilities throughout the Valley on a regular basis. Over the past two decades, emissions of air toxics and the 
associated health risk in the Valley have been reduced by more than 90%. The report is available on the District website 
at: www.valleyair.org  

27

http://www.valleyair.org/


PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Economic Development 

OCED Staff Liaison Silas Cha 
  

Lead Organization(s) California Central Valley Economic Development Corporation 

Lead Organization Contact Jennifer Faughn 
  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 
 
 
California Central Valley Economic Development Corporation (CCVEDC) participated in the West Pack trade show in 
Anaheim on February 20. As a result of attending this year’s annual event, five (5) companies are looking into the Central 
Valley for potential growth, expansion, or relocation.  CCVEDC led the Sacramento Mission, a meeting with about 20 
California legislators and Go-Biz.  All county representatives were in attendance.  Plans are being developed to distribute 
Central Valley assets to other partners throughout the state.  For instance, CCVEDC participated in the Broker Mission, a 
commercial real estate event, where they had the opportunity to showcase the Central Valley. 

CCVEDC maintains its regional partnerships with the Office of Community and Economic Development at Fresno State 
on the Investing in Manufacturing Communities Partnership (IMCP), preparing quantitative research with partners.   
CCVEDC is working with Collaborative Economics researching and gathering additional quantitative data on regional 
industry clusters, especially the Ag industry.  Activities include brainstorming sessions to explore regional industry 
groups within the Ag industry, food processing and manufacturing.  Each partner is charged with tasks to update various 
industry lists in these sectors.  CCVEDC focuses on outreach, recruiting, and marketing at trade shows which draw a 
national audience.   

 

28



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Energy 

OCED Staff Liaison Silas Cha 
  

Lead Organization(s) San Joaquin Valley Clean Energy Organization 

Lead Organization Contact Courtney Kalashian/Paul Johnson 
  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 
 
 
San Joaquin Valley Clean Energy Organization (SJVCEO) participated in the Clean City Coalition to educate municipalities 
on energy efficient usage.    
  
SJVCEO continues its partnership with the Office of Community and Economic Development at Fresno State 
administering the State of California WIB RICO grant, which leverages existing partnerships in Kern County to replicate 
training programs between workforce investment boards and community colleges in numerous counties in the region.  
This partnership is engaging the private sector by holding meetings with employers to gather input on some of the 
developments related to their industry.   
 
SJVCEO and PG&E completed energy efficiency technical assistance work in the eight-county region. Funding would be 
through public goods charge (PGC) dollars. 
 
Local government partnerships in Kern, Tulare, Kings, Fresno, and Madera counties, as well as through an Ag-based 
outreach program in the three northern counties, have made it possible for additional energy efficiency resources from 
PG&E, Southern California Edison, and Southern California Gas to be delivered and shared with the following customer 
segments: agriculture, small business, medium business, residential, schools, water districts, and municipalities.   
 
SJVC EO led the engagement of an eight-county effort with PG&E as the third party to work on retrofit programs and 
energy efficiency for winery and small businesses. 
 
 

29



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Health and Wellness Cluster (aka Health and Human Services Work Group) 

OCED Staff Liaison Silas Cha 

  
Lead Organization(s) Central Valley Health Policy Institute 

Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco 
Fresno Regional Workforce Investment Board 
Central Valley Health Network 

Lead Organization Contact John Capitman PhD 
Central Valley Health Network 

  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 
 
 
The Health and Wellness Cluster (HWC) met this quarter to discuss some accomplishments and challenges this past year.  
Grant proposals and other opportunities are being explored.  The Advisory Committee (Committee) reached the 
consensus that the cluster may be more effective in working through an advisory committee rather than four work 
groups.   
 
An initial assessment by Central Valley Health Policy Institute to establish a leadership education cohort revealed that 
elected officials differed widely on public health issues.  The finding that a lack of support exists for a leadership 
education curriculum poses additional challenges to the Central Valley.  The Committee noted HWC needs to move 
beyond the perception it is still Fresno-centric and ensure the message to other potential partners is HWC involves the 
whole eight-county region.   
 
Exploration of health issues in relation to economic impact and development is planned for the immediate future.  The 
Committee has determined if HWC could develop an “ask” to capture the Central Valley’s health issues, they could shop 
it to foundations for funding. Members of the Committee are in a position to take the lead once the “ask” is well 
formulated.   
 
 

30



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

  

Work Group Higher Education 

OCED Staff Liaison(s) Mike Dozier 
  

Lead Organization(s) Central Valley Higher Education Consortium 

Lead Organization Contact Cheri Cruz 
  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 
 
The Central Valley Higher Education Consortium Consortium uses collaboration and innovation in promoting a college 
going and outreach and college readiness efforts. Continued emphasis is on supporting efforts to improve outcomes, 
including productivity, student learning and success of underrepresented groups, advancing partnerships with business 
and industry, and providing incentives for inter-segmental collaboration. This proactive and strategic approach will 
advance student learning and success of the underrepresented students and create more “home grown” success stories 
that escalate gains in college attainment and completion over time.  
 
On January 6th more than 60 high school students met at University Square to register for 30 hours of instruction 
designed to teach them how to get into college and succeed once they get there. The high school juniors were recruited 
from campuses in Fresno, Kings, and Tulare counties. The idea of attaining a college degree or advanced skills training 
was just a dream to many of the students, who would be the first generation in their families to go to school beyond 
grade 12. Boot Camp will translate their dreams into reality. The four day camp hosted at Fresno State prepared 
students for the college admission process. In addition, those students will be trained to become college opportunity 
ambassadors and go back and empower their high school peers. They will be visible on their campuses wearing t-shirts 
that state,  “Ask Me How to Go.” The Consortium was funded by a grant from the Fresno Regional Foundation. 
 
College readiness continues to be a top priority. As we come near to an end of our funding support from the 
California Education Policy Fund, (CEPF), we are boastful of our efforts. We have invested two years in the capacity 
building of a region-wide standards and accountability that better prepares students to “be ready” and to succeed in 
college from the first assessment/placement test through graduation. Consortium staff and college faculty are near 
completion of a pilot project encompassing a series of innovative approaches to educational policy reform efforts 
focused on college readiness. The first priority has been on assessment and placement into college English and math 
courses. Our pilot project policy reform efforts focus on interrelated educational areas and will utilize action-oriented 
advocacy as a comprehensive strategy to policy making. As a result we are working on a streamlined, common 
assessment system that will serve to revolutionize testing for students in the Central Valley region. Nine of the Central 
Valley Community Colleges and one college center (Modesto, San Joaquin Delta, Merced, Fresno City, 
Willow/International Center, West Hills, Coalinga, West Hills Lemoore, Porterville, Cerro Coso, and Bakersfield) 
participated in the pilot project. The tests are now going through the state validation and approval processes, and the 
data used in these processes come from the participating colleges. Once the tests receive approval, the colleges can 

31



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

  

begin using them for student placement into English and math courses. Approval is anticipated for Fall 2014 classes. The 
tests will also be available for any California community college to use. The Consortium is unique in that it brings college 
and university leaders together with K-12 administrators to develop programs to expand and streamline job training, 
improve the college readiness of high school graduates, and regional alignment of curriculum. Discussions on a regional 
basis are taking place among K-12 superintendents and higher education CEOs relative to the impact of the new 
Common Core Standards and Smarter Balanced assessment on both the K-12 institutions and higher education 
institutions. Collaborative meetings took place February, 7, 2014 (North Valley - CSU Stanislaus, Turlock, CA ), March 7, 
2014 (South Valley - CSU Bakersfield, Bakersfield, CA ), March 21, 2014 (Central Valley – State Center Community College 
District, District Office North). The Central Valley Higher Education Consortium uses collaboration and innovation in 
promoting a college going and outreach and college readiness efforts. Continued emphasis is on supporting efforts to 
improve outcomes including productivity, student learning and success of underrepresented groups, advancing 
partnerships with business and industry, and providing incentives for inter-segmental collaboration. This proactive and 
strategic approach will advance student learning and success of the underrepresented students and create more “home 
grown” success stories that escalate gains in college attainment and completion over time.  
 
On January 6th more than 60 high school students met at University Square to register for 30 hours of instruction 
designed to teach them how to get into college and succeed once they get there. The high school juniors were recruited 
from campuses in Fresno, Kings, and Tulare counties. The idea of attaining a college degree or advanced skills training 
was just a dream to many of the students, who would be the first generation in their families to go to school beyond 
grade 12. Boot Camp will translate their dreams into reality. The four day camp hosted at Fresno State prepared 
students for the college admission process. In addition, those students will be trained to become college opportunity 
ambassadors and go back and empower their high school peers. They will be visible on their campuses wearing t-shirts 
that state,  “Ask Me How to Go.” 
 
College readiness continues to be a top priority. As we come near to an end of our funding support from the California 
Education Policy Fund, (CEPF), we are boastful of our efforts. We have invested two years in the capacity building of a 
region-wide standards and accountability that better prepares students to “be ready” and to succeed in college from the 
first assessment/placement test through graduation. Consortium staff and college faculty are near completion of a pilot 
project encompassing a series of innovative approaches to educational policy reform efforts focused on college 
readiness. The first priority has been on assessment and placement into college English and math courses. Our pilot 
project policy reform efforts focus on interrelated educational areas and will utilize action-oriented advocacy as a 
comprehensive strategy to policy making. As a result we are working on a streamlined, common assessment system that 
will serve to revolutionize testing for students in the Central Valley region. Nine of the Central Valley Community 
Colleges and one college center (Modesto, San Joaquin Delta, Merced, Fresno City, Willow/International Center, West 
Hills Coalinga, West Hills Lemoore, Porterville, Cerro Coso, and Bakersfield) participated in the pilot project. The tests are 
now going through the state validation and approval processes, and the data used in these processes come from the 
participating colleges. Once the tests receive approval, the colleges can begin using them for student placement into 
English and math courses. Approval is anticipated for Fall 2014 classes. The tests will also be available for any California 
community college to use.  

32



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

  

 
The Consortium is unique in that it brings college and university leaders together with K-12 administrators to develop 
programs to expand and streamline job training, improve the college readiness of high school graduates, and regional 
alignment of curriculum. Discussions on a regional basis are taking place among K-12 superintendents and higher 
education CEOs relative to the impact of the new Common Core Standards and Smarter Balanced assessment on both 
the K-12 institutions and higher education institutions. Collaborative meetings took place February, 7, 2014, (North 
Valley - CSU Stanislaus, Turlock, CA ), March 7, 2014 (South Valley - CSU Bakersfield, Bakersfield, CA ), March 21, 2014 
(Central Valley – State Center Community College District, District Office North). 
 
Department of Labor TAACCCT Grant is grounded in Valley expertise and input from regional employers and county 
Workforce Investment Boards which will transform the design, structure and delivery of education at 13 Central Valley 
Community Colleges. Our Board believes that our experience and research-based project can be replicated as a state 
and national model. CVHEC hosted a one day Convergence at the Fresno Piccadilly Inn on September 26 focused on 
sustainability, job placement, resource allocation, and evaluation. Two sessions were facilitated by Bill Craft and 
Kathleen Guy from the Eaton Cummings Group, and participants left with a plan and ideas for how to implement these 
important elements at each college. One of the afternoon sessions was especially designed for CEOs, VPs, Deans, and 
faculty leaders. The convergence was a one-day event hosted at Fresno Piccadilly Inn Airport. A second convergence was 
hosted on Friday March 7 at the University of California Center, Fresno. An event highlight included a student panel that 
shared their classroom experiences as a result of the innovation brought forth from the grant.  
 
 

33



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Workforce Development 

OCED Staff Liaison Mike Dozier 

  

Lead Organization(s) Central California Workforce Collaborative 

Lead Organization Contact Blake Konczal 

  

Reporting Period 1st  Quarter 2014 
 
The workforce investment boards which comprise the Central California Workforce Collaborative serve the unemployed 
and underemployed in fourteen (14) counties: Amador, Calaveras, Fresno, Inyo, Kern, Kings, Madera, Mariposa, 
Merced, Mono, San Joaquin, Stanislaus, Tulare, and Tuolumne. 
 
During the first quarter of 2014 activities included: 
1. Close out of the Central Valley Back to Work Grant - Stanislaus, San Joaquin, Merced, Madera, Fresno, 

Kings, Tulare, Mother Lode, and Kern/Inyo/Mono WIBs as grant partners. 
2. Continuing roll out of the Veterans Employment Assistance Project (VEAP) - Fresno, Kings and Madera 

WIBs as grant partners. This grant trains returning vets as utility workers for PG&E. 
3. Continuing roll out of the Central Valley Public Infrastructure Employment Project – Fresno, Stanislaus, and 

Kern/Inyo/Mono WIBs as grant partners. This grant offers pre-apprentice training for referral to building 
trades unions working on the High Speed Rail Project and other public infrastructure projects. 

4. Submission of a Prop 39 “Pre- Apprenticeship Support Training & Placement” Grant - Fresno, Kings, 
Madera, Merced, and Tulare WIBs as grant partners. This grant application focuses on the relationship(s) 
between WIBs, Community Colleges, Community Action Agencies, the California Conservation Corps and 
Organized Labor. 

5. Discussion of AB1910 (Gray) which proposes creating a San Joaquin Valley Economic 
Development/Workforce Committee at the State of California Workforce Investment Board. 

6. Initial discussion of a valley-wide “Slingshot” application to the State of CA WIB. 
7. Continuing discussion of the ongoing effects of the drought with emphasis on identification of possible 

funding sources to train workers so dislocated. Input to representatives from the State of CA – 
Employment Training Panel advocating their adoption of less restrictive rules on the drought funds they 
have been allocated. 

8. Discussion of pending reauthorization of the Workforce Investment act at the federal level. 
9. Excitement at the pending election of Adam Peck of Tulare WIB as Chair of the California Workforce 

Association. 
 
 

34



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Housing 

OCED Staff Liaison Stacie Dabbs 
  

Lead Organization(s) San Joaquin Valley Housing Collaboartive 

Lead Organization Contact Monica Palmeira 
  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 (Jan-Mar) 
 
The San Joaquin Valley Housing Collaborative is currently undergoing administrative changes and will be participating in 
a facilitated day long retreat to reconsider its structure and purpose. These changes also include new administrative 
roles for the California Coalition for Rural Housing as the lead partner, with the Office of Community and Economic 
Development providing support.   

Without knowing what additional changes will be decided on at the retreat, all activities are on hold until that time with 
the exception of planning the 3rd Annual Affordable Housing Summit planned for November 2014. 

The Collaborative is a 501c3 nonprofit organization formed as a regional entity to specifically address housing issues in 
the eight-county region of the San Joaquin Valley (Valley). The Collaborative not only serves as a much-needed forum to 
discuss regional challenges and strategies to address the Valley’s long- and short-term housing goals, it also serves as an 
invaluable tool for the region to organize as one voice when communicating with state and federal policymakers and 
regulatory agencies. 

 

35



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group PreK-12 Education 

OCED Staff Liaison Marcia Martin, Angelica Cano 
  

Lead Organization(s) Central Valley Educational Leadership Institute 

Lead Organization Contact Marcy Masumoto EdD 

  

Reporting Period 1st  Quarter 2014 
 
Central Valley Educational Leadership Institute (CVELI), partnered with State Center Consortium, Fresno County Office of 
Education, and Fresno Pacific University is planning to present the 7th Annual Conference for Exemplary Practices in 
Educational Leadership, October 2, 2014. We are delighted to have Dr. Michael Fullan, a world-renowned expert in 
educational leadership as the keynote speaker.  
 
This quarter CVELI also hosted Dr. Rick and Becky DuFour for a two day event on Professional Learning Communities for 
Valley education leaders. Approximately 520 were in attendance for the event.  
 
CVELI is working on a Leadership and Technology Project for the Rural Schools Network, funded by the California 
Endowment and Fresno Regional Foundation. Through this effort, a professional development program for 
superintendents and educational leaders in rural areas will strengthen the existing network community and its 
collaboration through the use of technology, and increase participants’ understanding of technology as a tool to 
transform classrooms and engage parents. Four Rural Schools Network events occurred during the 1st Quarter 2014 
reporting period, with a total of  95 attendees, at Le Grand Elementary School District, Washington Colony, Monroe and 
Orange Center Elementary School Districts, Mendota Unified School District, and Kingsburg Union High School District. 
 
The Building Coherence for Instructional Improvement (BCII) Project continued this quarter. This program is designed to 
enhance coherency across instructional systems. CVELI is working with Harvard Graduate School of Education to engage 
school and district leadership teams in professional development over two years. Clovis Unified is piloting the project. 
Members from seven Clovis Unified K-12 sites met together several times this quarter to implement new instructions 
and improve overall student learning. Once the pilot is completed, CVELI is expected to provide professional 
development and coaching support to other Valley districts in subsequent years. 
 
CVELI leads the Middle Leaders Program, a program for certificated and classified employees in urban, suburban and 
rural districts in the Fresno region which focuses on team building, leading change, and creating positive work 
environments.  This program, with 65 participants met this quarter.  
 
CVELI works independently with school districts to improve student learning outcomes. They provide professional 
development and consulting to address specific organizational priorities and to build the capacity of leaders to meet the 

36



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

challenges of their system. Current contracts include Lindsay Unified, Fresno Unified, and Twin Rivers Unified. CVELI also 
organizes professional development events for educational leaders. Content is created to enhance leadership skills and 
abilities to implement research-based exemplary practices to raise student achievement, close achievement gaps, and 
prepare students for college and careers. 
 
The Fresno Area Strive project is led by Fresno Compact (Fresno Unified, Clovis Unified, Central Unified, and Sanger 
Unified) and is partnering with multiple businesses and agencies, to create a seamless system “from birth to career” for 
students to reach their higher education and workforce goals. The project has six cross-sector work groups designed to 
strengthen educational and support systems to address six goals. The systems are being developed for the Compact 
districts; subsequently, the Compact will develop systems to expand across Fresno County.  The Children’s Movement is 
another organization that is working collaboratively in Fresno County to address priorities and needs of children, 
primarily focusing on reading on grade level by third grade. They are also integrated with the Fresno Area Strive project.  
 
State Center Consortium and partners held the first Central Valley Career Technical Education Conference for 160 
education and business attendees. The keynote speaker was Dr. Michael Bzdak, Executive Director of Corporate 
Contributions form Johnson and Johnson.  For an overview, see his blog: http://www.blogjnj.com/2014/02/business-
education-partnerships-johnson-and-johnson-helps-to-change-the-landscape/. State Center Consortium and multiple 
other valley agencies and school districts submitted proposals for CA Careers Pathways Trust grants this quarter. We are 
all awaiting news of funding. Similar activities are occurring across the San Joaquin Valley.  

 

37

http://www.blogjnj.com/2014/02/business-education-partnerships-johnson-and-johnson-helps-to-change-the-landscape/
http://www.blogjnj.com/2014/02/business-education-partnerships-johnson-and-johnson-helps-to-change-the-landscape/


PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Sustainable Communities 

OCED Staff Liaison Jason Waters 
  

Lead Organization(s) OCED 

Lead Organization Contact Jason Waters 
  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 (Jan-Mar) 
 
 
Staff and local agencies continued to be involved in Valley-wide efforts to improve sustainability and smart growth 
planning. As part of these efforts, local agencies participated in meetings related to the Valley-wide Greenprint, 
attended local planning meetings, continued the San Joaquin Valley Blueprint planning process, and continued to update 
their Sustainable Community Strategies. 

In January, Fresno COG held a San Joaquin Valley Greenprint Steering Committee meeting and discussed the potential 
next steps for the first phase of the Greenprint process. As part of these meetings, the Committee identified outreach 
strategies and discussed the types of data that should be displayed on the maps that were created through the 
Greenprint process. 

As part of the Blueprint process, Fresno COG is developing a Valley-wide fiscal impacts assessment tool used to measure 
the fiscal sustainability of development projects. This tool will help local planners and elected officials determine the 
long term fiscal impacts of development proposals. Fresno COG is also conducting a study that will analyze the feasibility 
of infill development in Fresno and the Valley.  Both of these items are ongoing efforts that will set to be completed this 
summer. 

The Valley Council of Governments (COGs) also continued to work on their Sustainable Communities Strategies (SCS) 
and other regional planning documents. During the 1st Quarters, Valley COGs continued to conduct outreach related to 
the SCS in preparation for a summer adoption. 

The online "Planners Toolkit" was also regularly updated with planning documents and templates related to smart 
growth.   

 
 

38



PARTNERSHIP WORK GROUP QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

Work Group Water Quality, Supply & Reliability 

OCED Staff Liaison Silas Cha 
  

Lead Organization(s) California Water Institute 

Lead Organization Contact Sarge Green 
  

Reporting Period 1st Quarter 2014 (Jan-Mar) 

The California Water Institute (CWI) reported to the Partnership Board at its March 2014 meeting its findings regarding 
the effects the drought will have on the San Joaquin Valley (Valley): this drought will result in people asking for help who 
have never had to before.  Emergency declaration options are in place to offer a set of reasonable alternatives and 
flexibility for working with the Endangered Species Act.  The pumping efficiency program is another tool for the water 
community. 

CWI continues to execute special contracts on water management activities which aid the Valley’s eight counties in 
attaining Partnership shared goals: 1) improve groundwater conditions and management; 2) improve disadvantaged 
community water supplies; 3) achieve a healthy Delta and a Valley-wide water management plan. This quarter’s special 
contract is an ongoing effort with Stanislaus County for its ground water ordinance on export and overdraft.  The 
contract has been extended until mid-third quarter of 2014 to assist in the implementation of the ordinance and the 
programs supporting the ordinance.  

A regional effort on water issues continues with leaders from throughout the eight Valley counties. Delta Vision 
Foundation is focused on California water quality monitoring.  Another effort is underway for underground water 
recharge improvement involving mapping and quantification of recharge capacities in the Valley. Efforts continue to 
supply drinking water for the Valley’s disadvantaged communities participating in various area-specific regional plans 
and provide responses to communities seeking assistance. These include the Tulare Basin and Upper Kings Forum. These 
efforts are being conducted in tandem with those of Dr. Karl Longley.  

Other “Valley Water Plan” activities include working with the Delta Vision Foundation Task Force on water management 
efforts to meet state co-equal goals of water supply and ecosystem benefits and the specific Delta water transportation 
issues related to and impacting Valley water supplies.  The two Task Force work groups are Surface Storage and Regional 
Water Management; staff participated in both this quarter.    

The above efforts support the overall goals defined in the Valley Water Plan strategic effort adopted in 2009.   

 

39



 

 i June 6, 2014 

Water Fix Policy Paper 
 

Preamble 
"Great interests were in active contention.  The engineer who advocated a plan or measure seeming 
favorable to any one of these, was condemned by all others; and he who pursued any independent 
course, as to policy or works, was in favor with none of them; while the great public took no interest in the 
matter except to condemn anything which contemplated general taxation...The truth did not prevail where 
misrepresentation could be made to serve a desired selfish purpose, and blind prejudice was everywhere 
present." 

      William Hammond Hall, 1904 
      California’s first water engineer, appointed in 1878 
 

Californians have waged water wars for more than a century.  Little investment has been made in water 
infrastructure since the days when Earl Warren and Pat Brown were governors of California.  Since then, our 
population has more than doubled at the same time that we have become far more aware of the water needs 
of our environment.  Our water crises have become more severe and will become even more so as a result of 
climate change, sea level rise, and continued population growth.  The time has come for forging consensus, for 
Californians to shed parochial views and join together in pursuit of solutions that work for all regions and 
improve water supply reliability for all categories of water users: urban, agricultural, and environmental.  The 
California Water Action Plan released in January by Governor Brown’s administration is a welcome step in the 
right direction.  It acknowledges California’s current reality:  

“There is broad agreement that the state’s water management system is currently unable to 
satisfactorily meet both ecological and human needs, too exposed to wet and dry climate cycles and 
natural disasters, and inadequate to handle the additional pressures of future population growth and 
climate change.” 

We fully support the holistic goals proposed in the Water Action Plan:  conservation, regional self-reliance and 
integrated water management at all levels of government to better manage demand; storage, conveyance, 
ground water management, and increased operational and regulatory efficiency to give us the flexibility to 
manage around the uncertain precipitation patterns nature has given us; actions to protect and restore 
important ecosystems, increase flood protection, and provide safe water to all communities.  The Delta 
Stewardship Council Delta Plan establishes policies and recommendations to advance a similarly integrated 
approach to achieving the Two Co-Equal Goals for the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta while protecting the 
unique values of the Delta as an evolving place. 

What is different about this policy proposal? 

First, it is a call to action.  The administration has characterized the Water Action Plan as 
“aspirational.”  It states challenges and goals but timelines and a financing plan should be added.  This 
policy paper attempts to move California closer to an implementation plan.  No water system in the 
world has been studied as much as California’s water system.  We urge that action begin now and that 
our political leadership put a stake in the ground calling for completion of all the critical components of 
the Water Action Plan by 2030 and leaders in all arenas work to forge the agreements and consensus 
to get things done.  

California’s approach to water management over the last few decades has been crisis-management.  
While we don’t know for sure when the droughts will occur, we know with certainty that they will 
come.  We muddle through each painful crisis, and then wait for the next one to occur.  This third year 

40



 

 ii June 6, 2014 

of drought is demonstrating the substantial consequences of California’s failure to invest sufficiently in 
water infrastructure. 

We understand that addressing all components of a comprehensive “Water Fix” for California will be 
expensive, but there is no more important infrastructure for the state, and the concept of “beneficiary 
pays” enables us to begin implementation immediately.  As is the case for all major infrastructure 
undertakings, all of the financing will not be identified from the get-go, but we can begin 
implementation based on funding that is accessible if political leadership is effectively exercised.  
Important discussions are underway now about additional funding to help pay for the public benefits 
of the required investments.   

Second, we strongly support concurrent advancement of all components of the solution.  
Historically, stakeholder groups have advanced their preferred component, leaving others concerned 
about implementation of other parts of the solution.  A key element to maximizing the benefits to be 
achieved from investments in all of these components is to move them all forward as expeditiously as 
possible as a comprehensive, integrated whole, which will more quickly further achievement of the 
Two Co-Equal Goals than will fragmentary implementation.  We understand that funding availability 
will influence timing of implementation for each component, but political leadership can help earn 
stakeholder trust and propel action by ensuring resource allocations to all components, demonstrating 
a steadfast commitment to convergence of all components by 2030.  While all agree that a 
comprehensive approach is needed, differences remain regarding how to ensure integrated action, 
implementation, and operations.  Some participants maintain that reliable linkages and commitments 
are needed to achieve results.  Others are concerned that linkages and commitments will only ensure 
that implementation will bog down and nothing will be accomplished.  Additional work is needed to 
bridge these different perspectives.  

Third, and perhaps most important, this policy paper is an effort to help forge consensus.  The 
participants in the “Water Fix” discussions leading to the development of this paper included  a diverse 
group of stakeholders from across the state: the general managers of water agencies in the Bay Area, 
Delta, San Joaquin Valley, and Southern California; the Association of California Water Agencies 
(ACWA) and Northern California Water Association (NCWA); the Delta Vision Foundation and The 
California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley; County Supervisors from Contra Costa, Sacramento, 
Solano, and Yolo counties and a prominent civic leader from San Joaquin County; and environmental 
organizations.  While not signatories to this document, representatives from the California 
Department of Water Resources and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife participated in 
some of the discussions leading to the development this document. 

This is an at-will collaboration.  Our names and affiliations are appended to this preamble.  The group came 
together because California’s water system is now in a chronic state of crisis and the array of solutions that 
must be implemented will take the better part of the next two decades to complete.  The group sought to find 
common ground on the actions that must be taken to ensure water security for the State for the balance of 
this century.  As a consequence of these conversations, we now share a better understanding of each other’s 
needs and a commitment to solutions that work as well as possible for all of us.  We entered into these 
discussions knowing how difficult it is to reach 100% consensus, particularly on a subject as complex and 
controversial as California water.  At the end of each monthly meeting, we took a vote to determine if we 
should continue the discussions.  Every vote was unanimously supportive of continuation.  In the end, all but 
four of the participants agreed to sign on to this policy proposal. 

When this policy paper was nearing completion, the group asked that it be reviewed by a panel of 
distinguished Californians with extensive experience on water matters.  The list of review panel members is 
also appended to this preamble.  

  

41



 

 iii June 6, 2014 

Signatories 
(Affiliations for identification purposes only) 

 

We, the undersigned, support the “Points of Agreement” listed in Chapter 3 of this report and urge the 
Governor, the President, the California Legislature, the California Congressional delegation, and Federal 
officials to provide leadership, direction, and accountability to ensure a comprehensive “Water Fix” for 
California is implemented consistent with the Points of Agreement and the integrated actions described 
herein.  A comprehensive “Water Fix” plan would propel the Governor’s California Water Action Plan into 
actual “action,” with specific actions, timetables, funding sources, assurances, and accountability provisions.  
We have worked together to take responsibility for this challenge and will continue to work with each other, 
within our organizations, and with others to advance coordinated, comprehensive actions for the state.  At 
stake are California’s environment, economy, and quality of life and their value to the nation. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 
Tim Quinn       Peter Weber 
Association of California Water Agencies   CA Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley 
 
 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 
Jerry Brown       Sunne McPeak 
Contra Costa Water District     Delta Vision Foundation 
 
 

 

__________________________________   _________________________________ 
Alexander Coate      Jerry Meral 
East Bay Municipal Utility District    Natural Heritage Institute 
 

 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 
Ron Jacobsma                           Fritz Grupe 
Friant Water Authority                   The Grupe Company  
 

 

 

 

 

 

42



 

 iv June 6, 2014 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 
 Jeff Kightlinger                David Guy 
Metropolitan Water District of So. CA    Northern California Water Association 
 
 
 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 
Beau Goldie              Dan Nelson 
Santa Clara Valley Water District                                                          San Luis Mendota Water Authority 
 
 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 
Supervisor John Vasquez                   Jay Ziegler 
Solano County       The Nature Conservancy  
   
 

 

__________________________________  
Tom Birmingham               
Westlands Water  District 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

43



 

 v June 6, 2014 

Policy Paper Reviewers 
• William Reilly, Former Director, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
• John Coleman, President, Association of California Water Agencies 
• Dr. Jerry Meral, Natural Heritage Institute 
• John Kirlin, Delta Vision 
• Ellen Hanak and Dr. Jeffrey Mount, Public Policy Institute of California 
• Rich Atwater, Southern California Water Committee (invited) 
• Dr. Peter Moyle, University of California at Davis 

 

 

44



 

 ES-1 June 6, 2014 

Water Fix Policy Paper 

Executive Summary 
California’s water challenges are daunting but not insurmountable.  There would likely be enough water to go 
around in most years if the State had sufficient facilities to capture, convey, and store a lot more water in wet 
times than is physically possible today and all water users are efficient and sustainable in their water use in all 
years, particularly in areas where groundwater use is currently unsustainable.  As shown in Figure 1 below, 
only about 3 years out of every 20 are “Normal” with the balance being either “wet” or “dry.”  Note that the 
Central Valley runoff in the year of greatest precipitation (1983) was nearly nine times higher than the year of 
lowest precipitation (1977).  That is an extraordinary range.  Note also that “dry” and “wet” years can come in 
bunches.  The State experienced an eight-year drought between 1987 and 1994 (with only one year slightly 
above “normal”).  Immediately following this drought period, the State experienced five consecutive years of 
water abundance between 1995 and 1999.  Climate change is expected to exacerbate this pattern: wet periods 
will be wetter (bigger storms) and dry periods may be drier and longer, so historical records may not provide 
an accurate forecast of future runoff. 

While in many individual years there is not enough managed water for all needs, California precipitation, 
averaged over a long-term period, provides sufficient water to meet reasonable needs for drinking water, 
ecosystem protection, and economic uses (provided we make a continuing commitment to continued water 
use efficiency improvement, conservation and appropriate demand management programs).1  Conflicting 
demands—particularly between fish and farms—arise most frequently during times of low rainfall.  Ironically, 

                                                           
1 Average statewide runoff is approximately 70-75 million acre-feet (MAF) per year.  Statewide net water use is approximately 63 MAF 
for urban, agricultural, and environmental needs (Department of Water Resources, September, 2013) 

Figure 1 – Central Valley Runoff, 1906-2013 

 
(DWR, http://cdec.water.ca.gov/cgi-progs/iodir/WSIHIST) 

45

http://cdec.water.ca.gov/cgi-progs/iodir/WSIHIST


 

 ES-2 June 6, 2014 

in some dry years, a higher percentage of water is exported from the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta watershed 
than during wet years.  The necessary facilities don’t exist to take greater advantage of an abundance of water 
in wet periods and reduce conflicts related to diverting water from the Delta watershed in dry years.  The 
challenge—and opportunity—is to construct the essential infrastructure to capture significantly more water in 
wet times, fill reservoirs and groundwater storage above and below the Delta, and manage both supply and 
demand to get through times of low rainfall.  This would leave more water in the Delta during dry periods 
when it is most needed for the fish.  To facilitate this common-sense approach, more integrated modeling is 
needed to determine how much water can be collected and stored in years of abundance and how, over time, 
that can help recover critically overdrafted aquifers, particularly in the Central Valley.  

In 2009, the California Legislature established new policy direction for water management in the Sacramento-
San Joaquin Delta, the heart of the state’s water management systems.  The legislation established the Two 
Co-Equal Goals for managing the Delta: 

Achieve the two coequal goals of providing a more reliable water supply for California and protecting, 
restoring, and enhancing the Delta ecosystem.  The coequal goals shall be achieved in a manner that 
protects and enhances the unique cultural, recreational, natural resource, and agricultural values of the 
Delta as an evolving place. 

This policy paper outlines the issues, agreements, and actions to move California forward to resolve long-
standing conflicts and achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals.  We propose actions to address three broad strategies: 

• Invest in Water Management and Water Use Efficiency.  
• Build a Fully Integrated Water Infrastructure System. 
• Implement a Coordinated Operating and Regulatory Structure. 

CHAPTER 1 describes the purpose of this policy paper: to articulate a comprehensive solution developed and 
supported by a diverse group of stakeholders and to call on political leadership to move to implementation 
with the urgency that the situation demands.  There is no question that some compromises and flexibility will 
be required, but there are solutions that meet the essential needs of all regions.   

CHAPTER 2 provides a primer on the Delta, its critical role in supplying water to two-thirds of all Californians, 
how it has evolved as a result of human activity over the last 160 years and as societal demands have changed, 
and what needs to be done to modernize the system to serve California’s needs for the next several decades.  
The status quo is unsustainable.  For more than two decades California has lurched from water crisis to water 
crisis, and, as will be described later in this paper, there is strong reason to expect future crises will be longer 
and deeper. 

CHAPTER 3 describes the ten “Points of Agreement” reached by the signers of this policy paper, agreements 
that guided the drafting of this paper.  

1. California precipitation, averaged over a long-term period, provides sufficient water to meet reasonable 
needs for drinking water, ecosystem protection, and economic uses.  The problem is that precipitation is 
highly variable year-to-year and current infrastructure is unable to capture available surpluses in wetter 
periods to help carry the state through drought.   

2. The water resources of the state, including surface and groundwater, need to be managed more efficiently 
and in a more integrated way to achieve multiple benefits.  California’s aquatic ecosystems are highly 
stressed and/or collapsing, in part due to flow alteration, loss of physical habitat, introduction of non-
native species, and pollution caused by human activity.  

3. All parties want to achieve the co-equal goals, while protecting and enhancing the unique cultural, 
recreational, natural resource, and agricultural values of the Delta as an evolving place.  

4. The current water system does not and cannot achieve the co-equal goals because it does not offer the 
flexibility to store water when it is abundant and move it to where it is needed when it is needed in a way 
that is consistent with the achievement of the co-equal goals.   

46



 

 ES-3 June 6, 2014 

5. Improved Delta conveyance alone will not entirely address the co-equal goals; a comprehensive plan of 
integrated actions is required to achieve them. 

6. Moving water through the Delta is complex and highly controversial.  All of us agree that the status quo on 
conveyance is not sustainable.  Some of us think that Improved Through-Delta Conveyance alone can be 
the solution.  Others of us conclude that Dual Conveyance, which includes both Through-Delta Conveyance 
and a new isolated component, is necessary.  To resolve the longstanding conflicts regarding conveyance, 
measures to improve through-Delta conveyance and investments in new storage to improve flexibility of 
water operations and water management should be pursued expeditiously while dual conveyance 
continues through its decision process. 

7. Improved water management and a sustained commitment to continuous improvement in water use 
efficiency in all regions are necessary to increase system flexibility and reduce conflicts resulting from 
scarcity.  

8. Protection and enhancement of headwaters areas is needed to increase retention, contribute to system 
flexibility, and adapt to climate change.  

9. It is vitally important that the proposed system solution consider the economic interests of every affected 
region and costs are allocated based on the benefits received, including general public benefits, e.g., 
environmental enhancement and meeting drinking water needs of disadvantaged communities.  

10. Any solution to achieve the co-equal goals must be developed consistent with the public trust, state and 
federal environmental requirements, water rights, and area of origin protections. 

CHAPTER 4 offers a straw-man proposal for the implementation of the principles stated in Chapter 3.  It begins 
with a summary of the existing policy framework that guides action and implementation now, including the 
Delta Plan, Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan, and Central Valley Flood Protection Plan.  Chapter 4 
describes the strategies and actions and quantifies some of the outcomes needed to solve California’s water 
issues.  It is intended to focus and advance development of a comprehensive action plan to be developed by 
the Governor’s administration, focused on three major strategies: 

(1) Invest in water management and water use efficiency to reduce demand and increase system flexibility.  
Californians must commit to improve water efficiency and sustainability and to reduce reliance on the 
Delta in meeting future water supply needs.  Groundwater overdraft must be reversed in areas where it is 
affecting other users or public infrastructure.  All regions that depend on water from the Delta watershed 
must improve surface and groundwater storage and management, water use efficiency, recycled water 
use, stormwater management, desalination, and other water management tools to increase self-reliance 
and support system flexibility to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals.  Recent measures adopted at the State 
and federal level in response to the current drought will help advance this strategy.  

(2) Implement a fully integrated California water system.  California’s existing water infrastructure places the 
Two Co-Equal Goals in direct conflict because there is little flexibility in the timing or location of water 
flows through the Delta.  California must invest in the necessary infrastructure to collect water when it is 
abundant and have flexible systems to convey it to where it is needed, when it is needed.  And it must 
begin to implement such a system with the urgency the situation demands.  There are five key 
components to such a system: 

 Natural Watersheds – Up to two-thirds of the State’s developed water supply is derived from natural 
watersheds in the headwaters areas of northern California and the Sierra Nevada.  Better forest and 
watershed management can increase water retention, promote healthy ecosystems, reduce fire risk, 
and offset some impacts of climate change.   

 Surface and Groundwater Water Storage – California needs more surface and groundwater storage, 
north and south of the Delta, to collect water in years of abundance to minimize impacts in “dry” 
years.  Several large water storage projects have been studied since 2000, but only one has moved 
beyond studies.  Action must be taken to reverse the unsustainable overdrafting of California’s natural 
aquifers, particularly in the San Joaquin Valley. 

47



 

 ES-4 June 6, 2014 

 Conveyance – Delta conveyance has been extensively studied by the California Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) and other agencies.  The focus of these studies has been on ways to improve how 
water is conveyed to reduce conflicts between human water use and ecosystem health.  While there is 
remaining controversy about how much water can be conveyed and how it should be conveyed (see 
Chapter 4), the signatories to this Policy Paper agree that the current conveyance system in the Delta 
is unsustainable.  

 Levee and Floodplain Improvements – Levees and floodplains in and near the Delta are critical for 
protecting people, land uses, ecosystems, infrastructure, water supply, and water quality.  These 
facilities and areas can be designed and managed to serve both ecosystem and economic functions 
and support multiple benefits.  Irrespective of whether conveyance occurs exclusively through the 
Delta or through a dual conveyance system, there are critical “strategic” levees in the Delta on which 
California’s water system will continue to depend. 

 Delta Ecosystem Restoration – Numerous projects have been identified to protect, restore, and 
enhance Delta ecosystems.  Some of these projects are required as part of permits for water diversions 
or as mitigation for other activities in the Delta (e.g., levee improvements).  These and other projects 
are part of the Delta Plan and other restoration plans.  In the last 15 years, little on-the-ground 
progress has been made restoring the Delta ecosystem.   

Also included in Chapter 4 is a description of the actions that need to be taken to minimize and 
mitigate impacts from infrastructure construction.  

(3) Implement a coordinated operating structure to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals.  Multiple agencies are 
involved in managing California’s water systems.  Building the comprehensive water infrastructure system 
California needs will not deliver optimal results unless these agencies make coordinating their activities 
and managing the water infrastructure consistent with the Two Co-Equal Goals a priority and standard of 
performance.  A coordinated operating structure to implement “more in wet and less in dry” will require 
close cooperation among operators, regulatory agencies, and local water managers; early involvement on 
Delta projects with representatives of the five Delta counties; improved transparency of storage, 
diversions, operations, and management actions; and consistent, effective enforcement of policies and 
requirements.  

CHAPTER 5 describes the policies, institutions, and finances that must be put in place as a foundation for action.  
Operational parameters must be established to ensure all water systems are operated consistent with the Two 
Co-Equal Goals.  Ecosystem management must consider the interaction between the multiple species that 
inhabit the Delta.  Implementation timelines must demonstrate a commitment to act with the urgency the 
situation demands.  A comprehensive water bond should be put before the voters this year as a vehicle to 
support the “all of the above” approach articulated in the California Water Action Plan.  Because specific 
beneficiaries rather than the general public are anticipated to pay 50% to 60% of the estimated $40 to $45 
billion required for comprehensive implementation, reliable assurances to ensure those investments result in 
their expected benefits are critical.  Institutional agreements must reinforce commitments and build trust 
among diverse interests and beneficiaries.  Progress and performance must be transparent and reported 
regularly to increase accountability.  Leaders and champions must step forward from all corners to make 
integration and implementation work. 

CHAPTER 6 is a call to action.  No estuary has been studied as much as the Delta.  This policy paper has 
emphasized infrastructure because it takes time to build and the State has not made necessary investments for 
more than a generation.  Water storage projects have been studied since before the turn of the century.  
Conveyance options have been evaluated for decades.  California is already in crisis.  Further analysis and 
procrastination will not help.  California will remain vulnerable while the problem will only get worse.  The 
solutions are sufficiently understood.  We know enough to act and adapt as we learn more.  Ultimately, only 
real-world adaptive management and rigorous monitoring will provide the answers to achieve the Two Co-
Equal Goals.  Political leadership, built on the broad areas of consensus described herein, is urgently needed to 
move to implementation. 

48



 

 ES-5 June 6, 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Things do not happen.  They are made to happen…. 
Nothing could be more disastrous for this country than for the citizens of one part of the state 
to feel that everything they have is theirs and that it should not be shared with the other 
citizens of this state….That is the way to stand still…. 
Progress represents the combined will of the American people, and only when they are joined 
together for action, instead of standing still and thinking that everything that had to be done 
has been done.  It's only when they join together in a forward movement that this country 
moves ahead and that we prepare the way for those who come after us…. 
 

President John F. Kennedy at the Groundbreaking Ceremonies for San Luis Dam, 1963 
 

49



 

 i June 6, 2014 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

  

50



 

 ii June 6, 2014 

Table of Contents 
Preamble ........................................................................................................................................................... i 

Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................................... ES-1 

Chapter 1. Purpose and Intent .................................................................................................................... 1 

Solution Framework and Vision ..................................................................................................................... 2 

Obstacles and Solutions ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Chapter 2. Role of the Delta ........................................................................................................................ 5 

The Delta Watershed and Water Supply for California ................................................................................... 6 

The Delta Ecosystem...................................................................................................................................... 6 

Delta Land Uses, People, and Towns .............................................................................................................. 7 

Delta Water Supply........................................................................................................................................ 8 

Water Quality .............................................................................................................................................. 10 

Groundwater Management ......................................................................................................................... 10 

Water System Vulnerability ......................................................................................................................... 12 

Planning and Implementing Solutions .......................................................................................................... 12 

The Status Quo is Unsustainable .................................................................................................................. 12 

Chapter 3. California Water Fix Coalition Points of Agreement ................................................................. 13 

Chapter 4. Direction for the Future ........................................................................................................... 15 

1. Build a Fully Integrated Water Infrastructure System ........................................................................... 16 

2. Invest in Water Management and Water Use Efficiency ....................................................................... 20 

3. Implement a Coordinated Operating and Regulatory Structure ............................................................ 21 

Implementation Timing and Sequencing ...................................................................................................... 21 

Infrastructure Mitigation ............................................................................................................................. 22 

Positions Regarding Delta Conveyance ........................................................................................................ 23 

Chapter 5. Assurances, Accountability, and Action ................................................................................... 25 

Operating an Integrated Water Management System .............................................................................. 25 

Managing and Decision-Making for Multiple Species ............................................................................... 26 

Funding Strategies for Implementation .................................................................................................... 26 

Other Actions and Commitments to Build Trust ....................................................................................... 28 

Progress and Performance Timeline and Accountability ........................................................................... 28 

Leaders and Champions ........................................................................................................................... 28 

Chapter 6. Conclusions .............................................................................................................................. 29 

 

 

 

51



 

 1 June 6, 2014 

Chapter 1. Purpose and Intent 
The current drought in California, coupled with the deep differences statewide about the Administration’s Bay 
Delta Conservation Plan (BDCP), has brought needed attention from policy makers at the State, Federal, 
regional and local levels to the critical water issues California must address.  What are these issues? 

 California’s current water management system is unsustainable for both people and the environment.  
Fish populations have crashed and are not recovering.  Groundwater basins are increasingly overused.  
Reservoirs are no longer able to store enough supply to reliably meet the needs of people and the 
environment during dry years.  During wet years, floods threaten lives, property, and habitat.   

 California’s state and federal projects, which complement regional water systems, were planned when 
California’s population was only 17 million people.  The population is now more than twice that size 
and likely to be 50 million people by 2050.2   

 Californians take for granted that water will flow whenever the faucet is turned on.  The 2014 drought 
highlights the water supply risks for communities and farms.  Californians need to act now to reduce 
future risks.   

 The ecosystem of the Bay-Delta Estuary, through which water is conveyed to almost two-thirds of all 
Californians, has been stressed to the breaking point.  A healthy Delta ecosystem is an indispensable 
part of any solution to California’s water challenges. 

 California agriculture, which is dependent on a reliable supply of water, provides food and produce for 
the state and nation, employs 2.5 million Californians on farms and in related support industries, and 
generates the fifth highest contribution to state exports ($13.8 billion of a total of $168 billion in 
2013)3.  The current drought may cause as much as 20% of California farmland to be fallowed, causing 
supply reductions for some foods and higher prices for consumers.   

 Surface water shortages and increased local demands have caused groundwater levels in some areas 
of the San Joaquin Valley to decline significantly over the last 70 years, creating subsidence issues that 
threaten some of the very infrastructure on which the State’s economy depends.   

 Inconceivably, some Californians today do not have access to safe drinking water in their homes.  In 
many rural and urban areas, the costs for treating water to meet water quality standards is 
unaffordable, which precludes the use of what would otherwise be available supplies. 

 California weather is highly variable, with years of water abundance and years of severe water 
shortages.  The current drought may be a preview of future conditions as climate change and more 
variable weather patterns put more stress on California’s water management system.   

 Precipitation occurs mostly in the northern third of the state, while the largest water needs are in the 
southern two-thirds of the state, where the largest share of the population and agricultural activity are 
located.   

 There are insufficient facilities to capture water when it is abundant, convey it south of the Delta, store 
it, and recharge underground aquifers (“water banking”) to reduce exports during the “dry” years, 
providing benefit to both people and the environment.  

 California’s water storage and conveyance systems, designed and built in the mid-20th Century prior to 
the enactment of environmental protection statutes, cannot meet California’s water and ecosystem 
management needs today. 

Californians have fought water wars for generations—pitting regions against each other —and argued 
endlessly about priorities for environmental, agricultural, and urban uses.  However, measured over a long 
period, California has sufficient precipitation to serve the reasonable needs of all regions and categories of 
water users and the environment.  The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta and watershed are the focus of much of 
these conflicts.  However, the Delta is interconnected with water management for much of the state, so fixing 
the Delta will only work if all aspects of our water management system are improved.   

                                                           
2 California Department of Finance, http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/projections/p-1/.  
3 U.S. Department of Commerce, International Trade Administration, http://www.trade.gov/mas/ian/statereports/states/ca.pdf  

52

http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/projections/p-1/
http://www.trade.gov/mas/ian/statereports/states/ca.pdf


 

 2 June 6, 2014 

It’s time for those water wars to stop, which is why a group of leaders from across the State have come 
together to find common ground.  Readers of this document will find that the diverse stakeholders who have 
signed on to this Policy Paper agree on the framework for the solutions that must be implemented.   

Solution Framework and Vision 
In 2009, the Legislature and the Governor established a legislative framework for addressing decades of 
conflict.  The 2009 Delta Reform Act calls for attainment of Two Co-Equal Goals:  (1) Protecting, restoring and 
enhancing the Delta ecosystem; and (2) Providing a reliable supply of water for Californians.  In addition, the 
law requires that the Two Co-Equal Goals shall be achieved in a manner that protects and enhances the unique 
cultural, recreational, natural resource, and agricultural values of the Delta as an evolving place. 

The essential elements of a viable solution are not nearly as complicated as many would like to make them.  
Aquatic ecosystems need sufficient water at the right time and temperature along with adequate habitat and 
food supply to promote healthy fish and wildlife populations.  Families, farms, and factories need reliable 
water to support and grow communities and the economy.  All water users must be smart and efficient about 
using and reusing water.  Construction and operation impacts of new infrastructure on landowners and 
communities must be minimized or mitigated to the extent practicable.  Solutions must respect and comply 
with water rights, area of origin protections, and water quality requirements.  The solution requires an 
integrated strategy of conservation, construction, and operational flexibility to meet the challenges ahead. 

The signatories of this Policy Paper envision a future when the Two Co-Equal Goals are achieved, as 
represented by a healthy Delta ecosystem with self-sustaining fish populations and sufficient water quality and 
water supplies available for all purposes, while the Delta is sustained culturally and economically.  This vision 
will be accomplished by working together to improve California’s water management system such that water is 
captured, conveyed, and stored in wetter periods and during dry periods more water is left in the rivers and 
Delta for the environment when most needed. 

California needs leadership, action, and investment to meet statewide needs and achieve the Two Co-Equal 
Goals.  The core components of a workable “Water Fix” for the Delta and California include five categories of 
both near-term and long-term actions: 

 Conservation and Water Use Efficiencies.  Continuously improve regional water management and self-
reliance in areas that depend on water from the Delta watershed, through water use efficiency, water 
recycling, advanced water technologies, local and regional water supply projects, and improved 
regional coordination. 

 Water Storage.  Capture and store large volumes of water when precipitation is abundant so it can be 
employed where and when it is needed for the benefit of all species, including humans.  Storage needs 
to take place in California’s natural watersheds, underground aquifers, and surface reservoirs above 
and below the Delta.   

 Conveyance.  Improve Delta conveyance to move the necessary volumes of water during “wet” 
periods to avoid stressing the system during “dry” periods.  Improved conveyance must reduce 
adverse impacts to the Delta ecosystem, seismic risks, and impacts of sea-level rise.   

 Ecosystem Restoration.  Protect, restore, and enhance ecosystems in the Delta and its watershed to 
support healthy, self-sustaining populations of fish and wildlife.   

 Delta as Place Protection.  Protect and enhance infrastructure and operations in the Delta and beyond 
to meet water quality requirements, reduce flood and earthquake risks, improve economic conditions, 
and facilitate regional economic investment.   

For all the complexity of California’s water issues, these core components have been part of every major plan 
to fix the Delta and address statewide water management needs, including the CALFED Bay-Delta Program 
(2000), Delta Vision Strategic Plan (2008), the 2009 water legislation package, the Delta Stewardship Council 
Delta Plan (2013), and more recently the Association of California Water Agencies Statewide Water Action Plan 
(2013) and the Governor’s California Water Action Plan (2014).  All these plans, however, have resulted in little 
action to date.   

53



 

 3 June 6, 2014 

Obstacles and Solutions 
It is essential that a realistic schedule to implement the Core Components be developed and agreed upon that 
includes a timetable for observable progress and commitments to fund implementation.  The principal legal 
basis for implementing such a framework is already in place.  So why has there been so much controversy 
about how to implement this framework? 

DISCONNECTED ACTIONS WON’T WORK.  Many proposals have been made that would address part of the problem, 
but leave stakeholders understandably concerned about how other parts of the solution would be addressed.  
If the needs of all regions and categories of water users are to be met, California needs a comprehensive, 
integrated water system.   
IMPLEMENTATION IS COMPLEX.  While the solution framework is simple, implementation is not.  For example, for 
lack of political will, partnerships, and integrated analysis, storage projects identified by the CALFED Program 
before the turn of the century remain “under study.”  Some environmental reviews for programs and projects 
run to tens of thousands of pages. 
WATER EFFICIENCY IS CRITICAL, BUT NOT SUFFICIENT.  Water is a precious resource and infrastructure is expensive.  
We would not burden users with the high water costs of water supply development if we can avoid them 
through increased conservation and water-use efficiencies.  The signers of this document affirm that building 
infrastructure must be accompanied by a concurrent commitment to water use efficiency and development of 
alternate water supplies, but these strategies alone will not solve California’s water needs.   
DELTA CONVEYANCE IS CONTROVERSIAL.  Moving water through the Delta is complex and highly controversial.  All of 
us agree that the status quo on conveyance is not sustainable.  Some of us think that Improved Through-Delta 
Conveyance alone can be the solution.  Others of us conclude that Dual Conveyance, which includes both 
Through-Delta Conveyance and a new isolated component, is necessary.  To resolve the longstanding conflicts 
regarding conveyance, measures to improve through-Delta conveyance and investments in new storage to 
improve water operations should be pursued expeditiously while dual conveyance continues through its 
decision process.   
EVERYONE IS RESPONSIBLE.  Some stakeholders want to restore California to a past state that is unattainable.  
Others want to ignore the changes in public values since our major water systems were built.  We can stipulate 
that mistakes have been made in the past and our environmental awareness has evolved, but the question is 
not how we re-do the past but where we go from here to reconcile and satisfy human and environmental 
needs.   
ADDRESS IMPACTS.  Affected communities are understandably concerned about the impacts of infrastructure 
construction.  All infrastructure projects cause impacts.  Every effort must be made to avoid, minimize, and 
mitigate construction impacts appropriately in advance of or concurrently when they occur.   
PROVIDE RESPONSIBLE FUNDING.  Going forward, infrastructure and ecosystem restoration must be paid for on the 
principle of “beneficiary pays,” recognizing that landowners, water users, businesses, and the general public all 
benefit from these investments and each must pay its share. 
IMPLEMENT OPERATIONAL PROTECTIONS.  Stakeholders are understandably concerned about how the system 
would be operated during dry years and normal years, and even at different times during any given year, to 
protect the environment, water quality, and beneficial water uses.  
RESPECT LAWS AND POLICIES.  Compliance with water rights and area of origin protections is a foundational 
principle.  Legally reliable commitments must be put in place to ensure operation of the system in a way that is 
consistent with achievement of the Two Co-Equal Goals and existing legal protections.   
ACT NOW.  There are some who feel that more study of the Delta ecosystem is required before solutions are 
implemented.  The Delta is by far the most studied estuary on the planet.  Several years of additional study, 
without action, will not remove all uncertainty, but will exacerbate the state of crisis that already affects 
California’s water system.   
ADAPT AS WE LEARN.  We must move quickly to act on the knowledge we have and adapt as we learn more.  

54



 

 4 June 6, 2014 

There is another reason why implementation has proved difficult.  Decades of water wars have spurred 
emotional polarization and distrust among stakeholders.  This Policy Paper describes the policies, institutions, 
and funding needed to move forward.  Beneficiaries must be confident their ratepayers will receive the 
expected benefits of infrastructure and related investments.  All stakeholders must be assured that new 
infrastructure will be managed and operated in a manner consistent with the Two Co-Equal Goals.  Assurances 
and or new regulatory processes must be negotiated with the State and Federal agencies and be grounded in 
robust adaptive management. 

This Policy Paper represents consensus among a broad set of leaders across California on the path forward on 
California water issues.  It is a call to action for leadership, investment, cooperation, and accountability to 
expeditiously refine and implement integrated near-term and long-term solutions to California’s most 
important natural resource and economic growth challenge.  Specifically, we urge the Governor and his 
administration to take the California Water Action Plan to the next level – to develop a comprehensive “Water 
Fix” plan for California, with specific actions, timetables, funding sources, assurances, and accountability 
provisions.  The proposals included in Chapter 4 and Chapter 5 are intended to give readers an idea of what 
such a plan might look like, but we do not want to be one more of the many polarized voices on the subject of 
California water.  We are open and receptive to better ideas.  The cost estimates in the report are rough and 
will remain so until a plan is fully developed, but readers will want to have an idea of how much such a plan 
might cost and how it might be funded.  What is important is that the State develop the implementation 
strategy with the urgency the situation demands, and that implementation of the plan begin in 2015 and 
conclude not later than 2030.  

Most Californians cannot devote the time to understand these complex water and natural resource issues.  
Instead, they rely on trusted messengers to help shape their opinions.  That is why the signers of this Policy 
Paper have chosen to speak out.  It is our hope that many other trusted messengers will join us in advancing a 
“Water Fix” that works for all Californians. 

 

55



 

 5 June 6, 2014 

Chapter 2. Role of the Delta 
California’s water history is long and contentious.  Nowhere is that more true than in the Sacramento-San 
Joaquin Delta and watershed.  Since the Gold Rush in the 1850’s, California’s economy and population have 
grown, increasing urban and agricultural water use.  Today, on average, 43 million acre-feet (MAF) are needed 
annually to meet the statewide needs of people and the economy and approximately 41 MAF are managed for 
the environment.  These needs are met with a wide variety of water sources, including local water bodies, 
reservoirs, and groundwater supplies (53.4 MAF), imported supplies from the Colorado River and other local 
projects (5.8 MAF), and water deliveries from the State and Federal water management facilities, which are 
primarily located in the Sacramento San Joaquin Delta watershed and Trinity River basin (10.7 MAF).  
Approximately 13.3 MAF of the State’s surface water is reused (Department of Water Resources, September, 
2013). 

The Delta and its watershed are also part of the largest estuary on the west coast of the Americas.  It is home 
and migratory pathway for hundreds of important fish, bird, and wildlife species and habitat that depend on 
the Delta for water, food, and shelter.  These resources also need water to sustain healthy populations.  

Precipitation in California is highly variable.  Each year is typically wet in the winter and dry in the summer.  
Total annual precipitation and runoff varies greatly from year to year, with frequent floods and droughts 
(Figure 2).  Since 1900, California has experienced nine large-scale, multi-year droughts (Department of Water 
Resources, Fall 2012, p. 4).  In addition, most of California’s precipitation falls in the northern third of the state 
(north and east of Sacramento), while most of the water demand is in the southern two-thirds of the state.  

In the future, climate change is widely expected to bring bigger, wetter, warmer storms with heavier rain and 
less snow and potentially longer, drier periods.  

Figure 2 – Central Valley Runoff, 1906-2013 

 
(DWR, http://cdec.water.ca.gov/cgi-progs/iodir/WSIHIST) 

56

http://cdec.water.ca.gov/cgi-progs/iodir/WSIHIST


 

 6 June 6, 2014 

Meeting California’s water needs is a monumental challenge, but not insurmountable.  California’s existing 
water management system and water demands lead to conflicts in meeting the needs for people and the 
environment.  Improved water management infrastructure, along with continuous efforts to improve water 
use efficiency and develop alternate supplies, can reduce these conflicts and better provide water when and 
where it is needed. 

The Delta Watershed and Water Supply for California 
The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta 
and watershed is the heart of 
California’s water management 
system.  The watershed, and the 
water management infrastructure 
within it, provides some or all of the 
water supplies for more than two-
thirds of California’s population and 
approximately 8 million acres of the 
most productive agricultural lands in 
the world (Figure 3).  The water 
supply system helps support virtually 
every aspect of California’s $2 trillion 
economy, the ninth largest in the 
world.   

Conflicts have intensified among 
competing demands for water supply 
and water quality for urban, 
agricultural, and environmental uses.  
These conflicts are most evident in 
dry years and even more so during 
multi-year droughts, such as being 
experienced now.  California’s water 
management system, mostly 
constructed between 1930 and 1965, 
was designed to provide reliable 
water supplies, but the system must 
be improved to meet California’s 21st 
century needs.  Water diversions from 
the Delta and upstream in the 
watershed remain relatively high in 
dry years, a critical time, stressing the environment. 

The Delta Ecosystem 
Since 1850, human activities have substantially modified the Delta and its watershed and used its water 
resources to serve societal objectives to the point where today the ecosystem does not function effectively for 
many important species. 

From the 1850s through the 1930s, more than 400,000 acres of Delta fish and wildlife habitat were converted 
to farmland and urban uses (Figure 4) (Thompson, 1957).  Only about 3 percent of historical Delta tidal 
wetlands remain today (Whipple, Grossinger, Rankin, Stanford, & Askevold, August, 2012). 

Dams were built on rivers in the upper watershed for water supply, flood protection, and water quality 
protection.  Levees and ship channels were built along rivers in the valley for water supply, flood protection, 

Figure 3 – Delta Watershed and Areas Receiving Delta Water 

 
(Delta Stewardship Council, 2013) 

57



 

 7 June 6, 2014 

and shipping.  These actions blocked access to spawning and rearing habitat for fish and reduced wetland 
areas for birds and other wildlife.   

Shipping, boating, and other 
activities introduced non-native 
species that prey on or out-
compete native species, take over 
habitat, or alter food webs (Table 
1).  

The capture and use of water for 
urban and agricultural uses has 
reduced flows into and out of the 
Delta.  Reduced flows at critical 
times for fish (such as dry years) 
have, like the factors outlined 
above, also altered the ecosystem 
to the detriment of native species 
in the Delta and Delta watershed. 
Today, the ecosystem is failing for 
preferred species.  The following 
species are listed as threatened or 
endangered under State or Federal 
endangered species laws: 

• Delta smelt (Federal and State, 1993) 
• Longfin smelt (State, 2009) 
• Central Valley spring-run Chinook salmon 

(Federal and State, 1999) 
• Sacramento River winter-run Chinook salmon 

(Federal and State, 1994 and 1989) 
• Central Valley steelhead (Federal, 1998) 
• Green sturgeon (Federal, 2006) 

Delta Land Uses, People, and Towns 
Over the years, the Delta has developed as a unique 
and distinct region with a cultural history based 
primarily on an agricultural economy, with 
increasingly important business resulting from 
tourism and recreation.  Like other areas of the state, 
the agricultural economy depends on quality water 
supplies and access to support services, food 
processing, and transportation.  The Delta tourism 
and recreation economy stems largely from access to 
boating, hunting, fishing, and birding activities that 
depend on a healthy ecosystem.  The towns in the 
Delta are important centers of commerce, residential 
communities, and historical attractions for the region.  
Bordering the Delta are the business and population 
centers of Sacramento, Stockton and eastern Contra 
Costa County.  The Delta is also crisscrossed with critical infrastructure for the California economy, including 
energy storage and transmission, water supply, and transportation.  The 1100-mile network of Delta levees 

 

Table 1 – Exotic Species Established in the 
San Francisco Bay and Delta (1998) 
Taxonomic group Number of species 
 In salt or 

brackish 
water 

In fresh 
water 

Total 

Seaweeds 6 0 6 
Vascular plants 12 18 25 
Protozoans 8 0 8 
Sponges 5 0 5 
Cnidarians 16 1 17 
Flatworms 0 9 9 
Nematodes 0 1 1 
Annelids 15 8 21 
Mollusks 27 3 30 
Arthropods 51 11 60 
Entoprocts 1 1 2 
Bryozoans 9 0 9 
Tunicates 8 0 8 
Fish 6 29 30 
Amphibians 0 1 1 
Reptiles 0 1 1 
Mammals 0 1 1 
Total 164 84 234 
Organisms that reproduce in both fresh and salt or 
brackish waters, or that move between them as a regular 
part of their life cycle (anadromous and catadromous 
species), were counted in both environments.  Other 
organisms were counted in the environment in which they 
reproduce.  (Cohen & Carlton, 1998)  

 

Figure 4 – Cumulative Reclaimed Acres in the Delta 

 
(Thompson, 1957, p. 238) 

58



 

 8 June 6, 2014 

protects the people, communities, economy, ecosystem, and water, energy, and transportation systems in the 
Delta.   

The Delta region is faced with numerous risks and challenges as the future unfolds.  Proposed changes in the 
water management system and habitat restoration are likely to result in conversion of existing land uses.  
Changes in flow into the Delta, diversions from the Delta, earthquakes, and sea-level rise could affect salinity 
and other water quality parameters for agricultural or urban water users in the Delta.  Without continued 
maintenance and improvement, many Delta levees could fail from floods, earthquakes, or other causes, 
flooding people and property and increasing salinity in the Delta. 

Delta Water Supply 
Through the 1960s, water management policy was driven by human ingenuity to capture and move water for 
human uses.  As a result, Californians approved and built a world class system designed to manage floods and 
survive multi-year droughts by storing water in reservoirs in the mountains and foothills of the Central Valley, 
building flood bypasses, and transporting water to agricultural and urban areas. 

Over the past 30 years, increased recognition of limited water supplies, coupled with growing awareness and 
concern for the environment, have changed public policy and how State and Federal agencies manage the 
system to meet multiple needs.   

In response to this new ethic of water responsibility, laws and regulations have been enacted to promote 
water use efficiency, protection of water quality, and restoration of fish and wildlife habitat and populations.  
Stored water supplies previously dedicated for urban and agricultural water uses have been reallocated for 
environmental purposes and the state population has increased.  These water management changes have 
resulted in reduced water supply reliability for many water users.  For example, Central Valley Project 
agriculture service contract allocation reliability in the San Luis Unit has been reduced by almost 60% since 

Figure 5 – CVP South of Delta Agricultural Service Contract Allocation, Long-term Forecast 

 
(Boardman, October, 2013) 

Since 1978, the long-term average south 
of Delta agricultural service contractor 
Central Valley Project water allocation 
has been reduced from nearly 100% to 
43%.
Pre-1978 – Generally full allocation 
except in critically dry years when 
allocation is 75% minimum
1978 – State Water Resources Control 
Board Decision 1485 
1991 – Endangered Species Act - Winter 
Run Salmon Temperature Control
1992 – Central Valley Project 
Improvement Act - Refuge Supply 
Increase (Level 2) / Refuge Supply 
Shortage Provision
1994 – Endangered Species Act - Delta 
Smelt Biological Opinion
1995 – Bay Delta Accord (Adopted as D-
1641 in 2000) / Clean Water Act
1997 – Anadromous Fish Restoration 
Program – CVPIA B2
2000 – Trinity River Restoration Plan
2008 – Delta Smelt Biological Opinion
2009 – Salmon Biological Opinion

59



 

 9 June 6, 2014 

1977 (Figure 5).  For State Water Project contractors, the Department of Water Resources (DWR) reports a 
long-term average decrease in south Delta water exports of approximately 350,000 acre-feet per year (about 
12% of 2.9 million acre-feet).  Table 2 shows the range of forecasted additional changes in Delta exports 
resulting from the effects of climate change on the State Water Project.  Figure 6 shows the historical changes 
in water management in the Delta watershed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Many areas of the state have responded to shortages resulting from increased municipal, industrial, and 
agricultural needs and from the required return of water supplies for the environment by improving local and 
regional water management and water use efficiency.  As a result of improved water efficiency, statewide 
urban water use since 1990 has remained relatively constant, in spite of an increase in population of more 
than 7 million people.  Over that same time period, the total number of irrigated acres of farmland has 
remained relatively constant; statewide water use for irrigation has increased slightly, along with productivity 
and yields. 

In spite of improved water use efficiency, the water management system is still on the brink of failure.  Floods 
continue to pose a high risk for people and property in very wet periods and reservoirs do not have sufficient 
capacity to carry California through a three-year drought.  

 
Table 2 – Estimated Average, Maximum, and Minimum 
Annual SWP Exports (TAF/year) 
 Existing 

(2013) 
Future 
(2033) 

Change Percent 
Change 

Average 2,612 2,468 -144 -6% 
Maximum 4,431 4,121 -310 -7% 
Minimum 671 762 91 14% 
(Department of Water Resources, December, 2013) 

 

Figure 6 – Historical Changes in Water Management in the Delta Watershed 

 
(Contra Costa Water District, February, 2010) 

60



 

 10 June 6, 2014 

Water Quality 
Delta water quality is important for both human and environmental needs.  The Bay-Delta estuary is a dynamic 
ecosystem where freshwater from rivers and streams meets and mixes with salt water from the ocean.  
However, the extent of salinity intrusion into the Delta is a concern for drinking water and agricultural uses 
that depend on the Delta.  Increased salinity is a drinking water concern, in that it creates unpalatable water 
and shortens equipment life.  Most importantly, however, bromide (a component of salinity) creates harmful 
byproducts when Delta water is treated for use as drinking water.  Higher levels of salinity in irrigation supplies 
can reduce crop production and accumulate in the soils. 

Salinity in the Delta is subject to natural variations in both time and space and is strongly influenced by 
freshwater inflow from the rivers, salinity from San Francisco Bay waters, and tidal action in the Bay and Delta.  
Human intervention has altered Delta flows and the extent of salinity intrusion.  European colonization 
initiated a period of large-scale changes to the landscape and water flows, which cumulatively tended to 
increase Delta salinity.  These changes include deforestation, dams, hydraulic mining, agricultural diversions 
and return flows, marshland reclamation, Delta channelization, and inter-basin movement of water.  
Paleoclimatic studies indicate that the Delta is generally saltier now than at any time in the past 2,500 years 
(Malamud-Roam & Ingram, 2004).  Analysis of Delta salinity monitoring since the early 1900s shows that since 
the middle of the 20th century, salinity rises in the Delta earlier in the year than previously, and stays high 
longer than previously (Contra Costa Water District, February, 2010).  These altered conditions, which may 
intensify in the future with climate change, will make salinity management to satisfy the requirements of 
various beneficial uses more challenging.  Rising sea levels are expected to exacerbate these changes as tidal 
surges will become more difficult to repulse and salinity intrudes further into the Delta.  

Other water quality concerns for the Delta include organic carbon, nutrients, chemical contaminants, heavy 
metals (e.g., mercury) and algae.  As urban areas and agriculture have grown in the Delta watershed, 
discharges and runoff have increased or mobilized these constituents.  For the ecosystem, some of these 
constituents provide benefit (organic carbon and nutrients in the appropriate quantities) and some have 
adverse impacts (chemicals and mercury).  Many of these constituents are a concern for drinking water 
supplies from the Delta.  Organic carbon creates harmful byproducts in the treatment process, especially when 
salts are also present; nutrients can increase the growth of algae or shift the composition to more harmful 
species of algae; and algae itself causes physical problems at water intakes and water treatment plants, 
noxious tastes and odors in drinking water, and can release substances toxic to both marine life and humans.  
Concentrations of nutrients, harmful algae, and algal byproducts have been increasing over the last decade.  
Algae and algal byproducts are likely to further increase with climate change due to increased temperatures. 

Groundwater Management  
Many areas of the state rely on groundwater to meet local needs, particularly in the San Joaquin Valley.  In dry 
years, groundwater provides as much as 40 percent of the state’s water needs and 60 percent in some areas 
(Department of Water Resources, October, 2003).  In some areas, past practices have resulted in overuse of 
groundwater basins, called overdraft (Figures 7 and 8).  In recent years, new wells and increased pumping to 
make up for surface water shortages have placed further demands on groundwater resources.  Many 
groundwater basins are not recovering, even in wet periods.  As groundwater levels decline, deeper wells are 
needed to reach water supplies.  In some areas, overdraft causes land to subside (settle), which can damage 
flood channels, pipelines, and other structures on the surface.   

61



 

 11 June 6, 2014 

Groundwater contamination from 
agricultural, industrial, and residential 
practices in many areas affects public 
health.  Remarkably, thousands of 
people who rely on groundwater in 
some of these areas do not have safe 
drinking water.  Many of these areas 
are disadvantaged communities with 
limited resources to address critical 
needs.  Without resources and 
appropriate oversight, these public 
health issues will persist. 

Today, groundwater resources are 
repeatedly stressed to the point where 
they are unable to sustainably buffer 
against drought, and subsidence is a 
growing problem. 

  

Figure 7 – Groundwater Basin Management and Overdraft 

 
Special districts are authorized to implement groundwater replenishment 

          
     

Figure 8 – Cumulative Central Valley Groundwater Loss, 1960-2013 

 
(UC Center for Hydrologic Modeling, University of California, Irvine, February, 2014) 

62



 

 12 June 6, 2014 

Water System Vulnerability 
California’s water management system is vulnerable and will not meet the needs for people and the 
environment now or in the future without significant investments to increase flexibility and capacity. 

Drought – The current three-year drought is causing significant disruption to communities and agriculture.  
Given historical and projected precipitation patterns, California should have a more flexible and resilient water 
management system to support people and the environment. 

Climate Change – Precipitation will likely be more variable in the future.  It is predicted that wet periods will be 
wetter (bigger storms) and dry periods may be drier and longer.  With warmer temperatures, the Sierra 
snowpack, the State’s most important reservoir, is expected to shrink.  The California snowpack already 
decreased by about 10 percent in the 20th Century from its historical average and is projected to decrease by a 
total of 25 to 40 percent by 2050, a loss of 3.75 to 6 million acre-feet of “storage.” (Department of Water 
Resources, December, 2013)  The water management system must adapt to these changes and compensate 
for that lost storage capacity.   

Delta Water Quality – Gradual or sudden changes in the Delta will likely change Delta water quality.  Sea-level 
rise will increase salinity, population growth and other upstream changes may increase pollutants, and levee 
failures from earthquakes or floods may draw salinity into the Delta, alter habitats, or limit water conveyance .  
The water management system must be made resilient to these impacts.  

Today, our water management system lacks flexibility and resiliency to prepare for and respond to these 
threats, which are real today and likely to increase in the future. 

Planning and Implementing Solutions 
Meeting the Delta challenge and addressing California’s water needs is a “wicked problem” of immense 
complexity.4  Thousands of diverse individuals and organizations have an interest in how water is managed.  
Over the past 40 years, visionary water leaders have developed and agreed on integrated, long-term plans to 
meet the needs of California.  However, action and implementation have stalled and failed as interests and 
institutions battle over priorities, funding, science, law, and policy. 

Today, our institutions are paralyzed.  A conspicuous lack of political will is the major obstacle to meeting 
California’s current and future water challenges. 

The Status Quo is Unsustainable 
Commitment to action begins with the recognition that California cannot remain static and immobilized in its 
approaches to water management.  

• Population will continue to grow. 
• Fish and wildlife will continue to suffer. 
• Water quality will continue to decline. 
• Climate change and sea-level rise will compound the stress. 
• Floods, drought, or earthquakes will break the system. 
• Public health, drinking water, and food supplies will be at risk. 
• The economy will take a big hit. 
• Crisis response will be costly and inefficient. 
• Inaction and underinvestment are not responsible options. 

Action and progress must be purposeful, integrated, and forward-thinking.  No single solution will address the 
challenge.  Everyone will have to change. 

                                                           
4 “Wicked Problem:  A problem that is difficult or impossible to solve because of incomplete, contradictory, and changing requirements 
that are often difficult to recognize.  The term "wicked" is used to denote resistance to resolution, rather than evil.  Moreover, because 
of complex interdependencies, the effort to solve one aspect of a wicked problem may reveal or create other problems.”  
(http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wicked_problem)  

63

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wicked_problem


 

 13 June 6, 2014 

Chapter 3. California Water Fix Coalition Points of Agreement 
The following are the agreements that form the basis of the policy and action recommendations embodied in 
this Policy Paper. 

1. California precipitation, averaged over a long-term period, provides sufficient water to meet 
reasonable needs for drinking water, ecosystem protection, and economic uses.  The problem is that 
precipitation is highly variable year-to-year and current infrastructure is unable to capture available 
surpluses in wetter periods to help carry the state through drought.   

2. The water resources of the state, including surface and groundwater, need to be managed more 
efficiently and in a more integrated way to achieve multiple benefits.  California’s aquatic ecosystems 
are highly stressed and/or collapsing, in part due to flow alteration, loss of physical habitat, 
introduction of non-native species, and pollution caused by human activity.  

3. All parties want to achieve the co-equal goals, while protecting and enhancing the unique cultural, 
recreational, natural resource, and agricultural values of the Delta as an evolving place.  

4. The current water system does not and cannot achieve the co-equal goals because it does not offer 
the flexibility to store water when it is abundant and move it to where it is needed when it is needed in 
a way that is consistent with the achievement of the co-equal goals.  Improved water management 
and water use efficiency in all regions is necessary to help balance needs of the Delta.  

5. Improved Delta conveyance alone will not address the co-equal goals; a comprehensive plan of 
integrated actions is required to achieve them. 

6. Moving water through the Delta is complex and highly controversial.  All of us agree that the status 
quo on conveyance is not sustainable.  Some of us think that Improved Through-Delta Conveyance 
alone can be the solution.  Others of us conclude that Dual Conveyance, which includes both Through-
Delta Conveyance and a new isolated component, is necessary.  To resolve the longstanding conflicts 
regarding conveyance, measures to improve through-Delta conveyance and investments in new 
storage to improve flexibility of water operations and water management should be pursued 
expeditiously while dual conveyance continues through its decision process. 

7. Improved water management and a sustained commitment to continuous improvement in water use 
efficiency in all regions are necessary to increase system flexibility and reduce conflicts resulting from 
scarcity.  

8. Protection and enhancement of headwaters areas is needed to increase retention, contribute to 
system flexibility, and adapt to climate change.  

9. It is vitally important that the proposed system solution consider the economic interests of every 
affected region and costs are allocated based on the benefits received, including general public 
benefits, e.g., environmental enhancement and meeting drinking water needs of disadvantaged 
communities.  

10. Any solution to achieve the co-equal goals must be developed consistent with the public trust, state 
and federal environmental requirements, water rights, and area of origin protections. 

  

64



 

 14 June 6, 2014 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

 

65



 

 15 June 6, 2014 

Chapter 4. Direction for the Future 
What might a path forward look like based on the agreements in Chapter 3?  

The policy framework for action has been established.  The Delta Vision Strategic Plan described the integrated 
long-term vision, strategy, and actions to address California’s needs and achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals of 
water supply reliability and ecosystem restoration in the Delta.  The 2009 Delta Reform Act and companion 
legislation established the legislative framework 
and state policy for achieving the Two Co-Equal 
Goals, while protecting and enhancing the Delta as 
an evolving place (see sidebar).5  The legislation 
included important components regarding water 
use efficiency, ecosystem restoration, water 
conveyance and storage, water quality, Delta 
levees, and economic sustainability for the Delta. 

Since the 2009 water legislation, several important 
plans have been developed to further define the 
framework for action and implementation.  The 
Delta Stewardship Council’s Delta Plan outlines a 
path to advance the Two Co-Equal Goals while 
protecting and enhancing the Delta as an evolving 
place (see sidebar, next page).  The Central Valley 
Flood Protection Plan outlines actions to protect 
people and property from floods and begins local 
and regional coordination to define specific 
projects.  The California Water Plan Update 2013 
provides a statewide overview of all programs and 
initiatives to integrate water management to 
maximize benefits and efficiency.  The State Water 
Quality Control Board is updating the Bay-Delta 
Water Quality Control Plan, which sets overall 
water quality objectives for the Delta and Central 
Valley.  Recently, the Governor’s California Water 
Action Plan provided a broad outline for an 
integrated approach to address California’s water 
needs.   

Both the legislation and the Delta Plan identified 
specific categories of infrastructure investments to 
improve California’s water management system.  
However, action and progress on these necessary 
physical improvements has lacked an integrated 
approach and been entirely too slow.  It is now time 
to act on these plans.   

  

                                                           
5 Congress established the Two Co-Equal Goals as Federal policy for the Delta in PL 112-74, Section 205, “The Federal policy for 
addressing California’s water supply and environmental issues related to the Bay-Delta shall be consistent with State law, including the 
co-equal goals of providing a more reliable water supply for the State of California and protecting, restoring, and enhancing the Delta 
ecosystem.” 

Two Co-Equal Goals 
In 2009, the legislative package of water reforms, including 
the Delta Reform Act, established the Two Co-Equal Goals 
for the Delta as State policy: 
“Coequal goals” means the two goals of providing a more 
reliable water supply for California and protecting, 
restoring, and enhancing the Delta ecosystem.  The 
coequal goals shall be achieved in a manner that protects 
and enhances the unique cultural, recreational, natural 
resource, and agricultural values of the Delta as an 
evolving place.  (Section 85054) 
The policy of the State of California is to achieve the 
following objectives that the Legislature declares are 
inherent in the coequal goals for management of the 
Delta: 
(a) Manage the Delta’s water and environmental resources 
and the water resources of the state over the long term. 
(b) Protect and enhance the unique cultural, recreational, 
and agricultural values of the California Delta as an 
evolving place. 
(c) Restore the Delta ecosystem, including its fisheries and 
wildlife, as the heart of a healthy estuary and wetland 
ecosystem. 
(d) Promote statewide water conservation, water use 
efficiency, and sustainable water use. 
(e) Improve water quality to protect human health and the 
environment consistent with achieving water quality 
objectives in the Delta. 
(f) Improve the water conveyance system and expand 
statewide water storage. 
(g) Reduce risks to people, property, and state interests in 
the Delta by effective emergency preparedness, 
appropriate land uses, and investments in flood protection. 
(h) Establish a new governance structure with the 
authority, responsibility, accountability, scientific support, 
and adequate and secure funding to achieve these 
objectives.  (Section 85020) 

66

http://www.deltavisionfoundation.org/vision-for-the-delta/
http://deltacouncil.ca.gov/delta-plan-0
http://www.cvfpb.ca.gov/CVFPP/
http://www.cvfpb.ca.gov/CVFPP/
http://www.waterplan.water.ca.gov/cwpu2013/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/bay_delta/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/bay_delta/
http://resources.ca.gov/california_water_action_plan/
http://resources.ca.gov/california_water_action_plan/


 

 16 June 6, 2014 

This policy paper proposes actions and performance outcomes to address three broad strategies: 

• Build a Fully Integrated Water Infrastructure System 
• Implement a Coordinated Operational Structure 
• Invest in Water Management and Water Use Efficiency 

While all three strategies must be advanced 
concurrently, infrastructure is the long-lead item.  
Sustained action and implementation are needed 
over the long term to improve California’s water 
management infrastructure.  Drought conditions 
will drive immediate actions, but near-term, mid-
term, and long-term infrastructure improvements 
must be sustained through variable water years 
and political administrations to avoid further 
declines or potential catastrophic failures.  

Specific qualitative and quantitative outcomes are 
the best tool for focusing actions on expected 
results and adjusting implementation as results 
and conditions change.  The following identifies 
suggested actions and specific, quantifiable 
outcomes for critical infrastructure to be 
implemented over the next 15 years, pending 
further technical, environmental, and economic 
feasibility analysis.  The outcomes are followed by 
process and timing outcomes to guide action and 
decision-making over the 15-year timeframe.  
These suggestions are intended to focus and 
advance development of a comprehensive 
“Water Fix” plan. 

1. Build a Fully Integrated Water 
Infrastructure System 

California needs a fully integrated water 
infrastructure system that provides the flexibility 
to adjust to the wide fluctuation in the state’s 
precipitation pattern and the timing of diverse needs and demands.  Such an integrated system must enable 
the state to store water when it is abundant and convey it to where it is needed, when it is needed, particularly 
in “dry” years, to enable achievement of the Two Co-Equal Goals.  Because it could take up to 20 years to 
construct such an integrated infrastructure system, action and implementation must start now.  Following are 
the key infrastructure categories that must advance. 

a. Natural Watersheds – Up to two-thirds of the State’s developed water supply is derived from watersheds 
in the headwaters areas of northern California and the Sierra Nevada, mostly above major dams.  Many of 
these areas will continue to lose water storage and retention capacity as climate change shrinks the 
snowpack.  Wildfires also threaten California’s water management systems and water quality.  Studies are 
increasingly showing that better forest and watershed management can increase water retention, 
promote healthy ecosystems, reduce fire risk, and offset some impacts of climate change.  One recent 
study concluded that active forest management could increase water yields by as much as 16 percent and 
delay spring snowmelt by days or weeks (Bales, et al., November, 2011).  Investments in watershed 
management can increase water supplies for human and environmental purposes from the Sierras to the 
sea.   

The Delta Plan 
The 2013 Delta Plan, which includes the policies and 
recommendations to advance the Two Co-Equal Goals, 
while protecting and enhancing the unique cultural, 
recreational, natural resource, and agricultural values of 
the Delta as an evolving place, outlined six broad areas for 
action: 
• In order to improve and secure our water supply, while 

taking pressure off the Delta, we must use water more 
efficiently in cities and on farms, and develop 
alternative, usually local, sources. 

• We must also get much better at capturing and 
storing the surplus water that nature provides in the 
wettest years, building reserves that can be drawn on 
in dry ones. 

• To revitalize the Delta ecosystem, we must provide 
adequate seaward flows in Delta channels, on a 
schedule more closely mirroring historical rhythms: 
what the Plan calls natural, functional flows. 

• We must also bring back generous wetlands and 
riparian zones in the Delta for the benefit of fish and 
birds. 

• To preserve the Delta as a place, we must restrict new 
urban development to those peripheral areas already 
definitely earmarked for such growth, while 
supporting farming and recreation in the Delta’s core. 

• And we must floodproof the Delta, as far as feasible, 
mainly by improving levees and by providing more 
overflow zones where swollen rivers can spread 
without doing harm.  (Delta Plan Executive Summary) 

67



 

 17 June 6, 2014 

Desired Outcome.  Improve water retention in headwaters areas for the Delta to increase water supplies 
for human and environmental uses. 

1. Capture and retain at least 250,000 acre-feet of annual long-term yield in headwaters areas through 
improved management of mountain meadows, forests, watershed, and reservoirs.6 

b. Surface and Groundwater Water Storage – California’s water management system needs more flexibility 
to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals.  The current system is limited in its ability to capture water when it is 
abundant and move it to where it is needed in a manner that also protects and enhances ecosystem 
function and fish populations.  This concept of improved infrastructure to provide “more in wet and less in 
dry” water management flexibility is a core strategy for achieving the Two Co-Equal Goals.  The overall goal 
is to expand and integrate surface and groundwater storage facilities to increase system flexibility, take 
advantage of underused surface and groundwater storage capacity, and improve operations for both 
ecosystem function and water supply reliability. 

Substantial infrastructure improvements are needed to provide flow for fish at the right time and 
temperature, reduce the impacts of water conveyance operations, and meet the needs of California for 
municipal, industrial, and agricultural water uses.  Several large water storage projects have been studied 
since 2000.  The California Water Commission, Delta Stewardship Council, and Association of California 
Water Agencies are surveying local and regional water districts to identify small to medium sized water 
storage projects that could improve water management.  Local water districts across the state are studying 
and implementing projects to improve groundwater storage.  Recent attention on groundwater overdraft 
and contamination in the San Joaquin Valley is highlighting the need for projects to improve groundwater 
management and conjunctive use capabilities. 

State and Federal funding is critical for the public benefits of water storage, including fisheries and habitat 
management, water quality, flood management, and recreation.  The 2000 CALFED record of decision 
authorized study of several major storage projects above and below the Delta.  These storage projects 
have been planned and designed to increase water supply reliability and provide public benefits to the 
water management system.  The cost of these storage projects has been estimated at $7.5 to $8 billion.  
Current policy anticipates that up to 50 percent of the project costs would be allocated to public benefits.  
Therefore, to make these storage improvements to the system would require $3 to $4 billion in public 
funds.  Water users would pay for water supply benefits of storage projects.   

Desired Outcomes.  Increase water storage in all regions to increase management flexibility to capture 
flood flows for all uses and reduce diversions at critical times for the environment. 

1. Capture and store additional annual long-term supplies in surface, groundwater, and floodplain 
storage upstream of the Delta to replace snowpack storage lost as a consequence of climate change 
and improve water supply for environmental, urban, and agricultural needs.7 

2. Capture and make available additional dry-year yield in surface and groundwater storage in the San 
Joaquin Valley, Bay Area, and Southern California to allow for reduced diversions from the Delta and 
its tributaries in dry years when conflicts with environmental needs are greatest.8 

c. Conveyance – Delta conveyance has been extensively studied by DWR and other agencies.  The focus of 
these studies has been on ways to improve how water is conveyed through the Delta to reduce conflicts 

                                                           
6 As an example, the CA Water Plan Update 2013 notes, “Based on the limited available information and a reasonable range of 
assumptions, meadow restoration in the Sierra Nevada could increase the amount of groundwater retained in meadows by 50,000 to 
500,000 acre-feet (af) annually.”  (Department of Water Resources, September, 2013, pp. 23-6, Vol. 3) 
7 The Department of Water Resources forecasts that California will lose 3.75 to 6 MAF of snowpack by 2050 compared to historical 
average as a result of climate change (Department of Water Resources, October, 2008, p. 4).  Additional storage is needed to replace 
this storage, particularly in wet years, and to provide water management flexibility to meet environmental, municipal, industrial, and 
agricultural water needs. 
8 This outcome is designed to identify and develop sufficient groundwater and surface water storage downstream of the Delta to store 
enough water from wet years to meet water needs from the Delta for one year.  Actual operations would be different. 

68



 

 18 June 6, 2014 

between municipal, industrial, and agricultural water use and ecosystem health.  While there is remaining 
controversy about Delta conveyance and diversions, the signatories to this Policy Paper agree that the 
Delta conveyance infrastructure must be improved to address current conflicts and future risks and 
changes.  A brief summary of perspectives regarding the through-Delta conveyance and dual conveyance 
approaches is included at the end of this chapter. 

Additionally, local conveyance systems must be constructed to ensure water can be moved in an efficient 
manner that maximizes beneficial use at an affordable cost.  

Desired Outcomes.  Improve Delta conveyance to protect important fish species, improve flow for 
ecosystem needs (match amounts and timing of flow with physical habitat), improve water supply and 
water supply reliability, and protect water quality, consistent with the Two Co-Equal Goals and regulatory 
requirements. 

d. Levee and Floodplain Improvements – Levees and floodplains in and near the Delta are critical 
infrastructure for protecting people, land uses, ecosystems, infrastructure, water supply, and water 
quality.  These facilities and areas can be designed and managed to serve both ecosystem and economic 
functions better and support multiple benefits.  Studies by the Department of Water Resources and the 
Delta Protection Commission identified risks and needs for levee improvements.  Irrespective of whether 
conveyance occurs exclusively through the Delta or through a dual conveyance system, there are critical 
“strategic” levees in the Delta on which California’s water system will continue to depend.  Priority must be 
given to ensure these levees are improved and properly maintained.   

Levee maintenance and improvement is ongoing in the Delta and Central Valley to address deficiencies 
and reduce risks to people, property, and infrastructure.  Analyses are underway at the Central Valley 
Flood Protection Board and Delta Stewardship Council to identify levee projects and State investment 
priorities for the Central Valley and Delta, respectively.  Projects to expand or improve floodplains for joint 
use for flood management, fish or bird habitat, and farming are being developed through the Central 
Valley Flood Protection Plan, BDCP, and current water diversion permits.  Continuous investment and 
improvement of levee and floodplain infrastructure is needed to protect and enhance the Delta 
ecosystem, water supply reliability, and the Delta as an evolving place. 

Levee improvement and floodplain projects should be funded consistent with the beneficiary pays 
principle (see Chapter 5).  State and Federal funding is critical for the public benefits of levee and 
floodplain projects, including fisheries and habitat management, water quality, flood management, and 
recreation.  Recent funding for Delta levee improvements has come primarily from Proposition 1E, but this 
funding is nearly exhausted.  Additional public funds are needed to advance levee improvement projects, 
particularly those that provide multiple benefits of flood protection, infrastructure security, and 
environmental restoration, consistent with the investment priorities identified by the Central Valley Flood 
Protection Board and Delta Stewardship Council, in cooperation with other State agencies.  

  

69



 

 19 June 6, 2014 

Desired Outcomes.   

Improve Delta levees to reduce risks for people, property, and infrastructure. 

1. Complete investigations and decisions to prioritize strategic island and levee investments in the Delta. 
2. Complete flood protection levee improvements for small residential communities in the legal Delta, 

consistent with the identified State investment priorities. 
3. Complete seismic resiliency improvements to levees protecting water supply conveyance in the Delta, 

consistent with the identified State investment priorities. 
4. Complete investigations of island, levee, and channel improvements or modifications to provide 

ecosystem and water quality benefits. 

Improve floodplains to provide flood protection, environmental benefits, and water retention. 

1. Implement physical, management, and operational improvements in the Yolo Bypass and Sutter 
Bypass to enhance joint use of the bypass for flood management, agriculture, wildlife, and fish habitat. 

2. Complete the San Joaquin River Flood Bypass. 

e. Delta Ecosystem Restoration – Numerous projects have been identified to protect, restore, and enhance 
Delta ecosystems.  Some of these projects are required as part of permits for water diversions or as 
mitigation for other activities in the Delta (e.g., levee improvements).  These and other projects are part of 
the Delta Plan, Suisun Marsh Plan, CALFED Ecosystem Restoration Plan, and other restoration plans to 
reverse the detrimental impacts of human activities, restore more natural habitats, and promote healthy 
populations of native species.  Improved management of flows (timing, temperature, pulses, etc.) is also 
an important part of Delta ecosystem restoration.  Other infrastructure investments, such as storage and 
conveyance, will increase system flexibility and environmental flow management capabilities to improve 
ecosystem flows when implemented within a more coordinated operating and regulatory structure (see 
below). 

Desired Outcomes.  Implement immediate and near-term habitat restoration projects to improve 
ecosystem function and begin adaptive learning.  The Biological Opinions for CVP and SWP operations 
require restoration of at least 8,000 acres of intertidal habitat and 17,000 to 20,000 acres of floodplain 
habitat in the Yolo Bypass and lower Sacramento River (Delta Stewardship Council, 2013).  The Suisun 
Marsh Plan describes restoration of 5,000 to 7,000 acres of tidal marsh and protection and enhancement 
of 44,000 to 46,000 acres of managed wetlands over a period of 30 years (by 2044) (Bureau of 
Reclamation, November, 2011).  The habitat restoration schedule from the proposed BDCP anticipates 
approximately 153,000 acres of habitat protection and restoration over a period of 40 years.  During the 
first 15 years, the program proposes approximately 30,000 acres of tidal habitat restoration, 33,000 acres 
of natural communities protection and restoration, and 5,000 acres of other habitat restoration (these 
acres do not include floodplain habitat activities in the Yolo Bypass).  The BDCP also identifies up to 
approximately 26,000 acres of planned restoration activities in progress now that could be credited to one 
or more of the requirements and plans listed above (Department of Water Resources, November, 2013, 
pp. 6-3 and 6-14).  Based on these plans and programs pilot studies must accelerate to confirm ecosystem 
benefits and project-level environmental reviews must be completed promptly to identify and mitigate 
potential land and water quality impacts.  Regardless of the final decision-making regarding BDCP, 
substantial action and implementation should be completed within 15 years to begin establishing habitats 
of sufficient size and interconnectivity to increase species abundance and support food web productivity.  
This implementation is identified as critical interim targets for habitat restoration to protect and enhance 
native species in the Delta and Suisun Marsh.  The habitat targets shown in Table 3 represent an 
approximate compilation of existing plans to demonstrate the scale of implementation and adaptive 
management.   

70



 

 20 June 6, 2014 

 

Table 3 – Interim Habitat Restoration Targets 

Habitat Restoration Type (acres unless noted) 15-Year Target 
Natural Communities Protection and Restoration 30,000-40,000 
Tidal Wetland Restoration 15,000-30,000 
Seasonally Inundated Floodplain Restoration 10,000-20,000 
Other Habitat Restoration 3,000-5,000 
Channel Margin Enhancement (miles) 10 
Total 58,000-95,000 
These targets are based on a synthesis of the required and planned 
restoration described above. 

 

2. Invest in Water Management and Water Use Efficiency 
Infrastructure improvements alone will not do the job; continuous commitment and investment to improve 
water use efficiency and develop alternate local supplies is also necessary.  Many water agencies have 
demonstrated that investment in all options for water use efficiency and integrated regional water 
management increases management flexibility to meet water supply needs.  All regions must commit to similar 
efforts and demonstrate improved efficiency and regional water management that increases sustainability, 
reduces reliance on water from California’s natural systems at critical times, and increases system flexibility to 
meet the needs of both people and the environment.  State and regional investments in water use efficiency, 
water recycling, advanced water technologies, and regional coordination and management help meet regional 
needs and increase regional self-reliance.  

Desired Outcomes.  Improve regional water supply portfolios to reduce reliance on the Delta in meeting 
California's future water supply needs through at least a six-year drought.  All regions that depend on water 
from the Delta watershed should improve surface and groundwater management and storage, water use 
efficiency, recycled water use, stormwater management, desalination, and other water management tools to 
increase self-reliance and support system flexibility to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals. 

1. Achieve state water use efficiency targets for each region and set targets for further improvements in 
urban and agricultural water use efficiency. 

2. Achieve local and regional groundwater sustainability to increase dry year water supply reliability and 
regional self-reliance, through improved groundwater management and monitoring, expanded conjunctive 
use, demand management, and treatment/remediation where appropriate. 

3. Establish regional targets and implement actions to add at least one-million acre-feet of new reclaimed 
water production statewide by 2020 and two million acre-feet by 2030.9.  

4. Establish regional targets and improve stormwater management to increase stormwater capture and use 
by 500,000 acre-feet by 2020 and one million acre-feet by 2030.9 

5. Establish regional targets and increase desalination of brackish water and seawater to improve water 
supplies and water quality. 

6. Provide safe drinking water supplies for communities that currently rely on groundwater that does not 
meet drinking water standards.  

Reduce contaminants that adversely affect water quality for urban, agricultural, and environmental purposes.  
All Californians should receive drinking water that meets State and Federal drinking water standards.  Efforts 
and expenditures should increase to treat and/or reduce and control contaminants that adversely affect 
surface waters and important groundwater basins. 

                                                           
9 http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/resolutions/2013/rs2013_0003_a.pdf.  

71

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/resolutions/2013/rs2013_0003_a.pdf


 

 21 June 6, 2014 

1. Develop local and regional approaches to ensure that people receive drinking water that meets State and 
Federal drinking water standards. 

2. Control point source discharges in the Central Valley that adversely affect the Delta. 
3. Manage urban and agricultural non-point source runoff to reduce contaminants. 

3. Implement a Coordinated Operating and Regulatory Structure 
The Delta is a complex, multi-species ecosystem of both terrestrial and aquatic habitats, with important 
interactions among them.  New facilities and habitat alone are not sufficient to fix the Delta and meet 
California’s needs.  New infrastructure must be operated and managed to achieve multiple goals and benefits.  
Improved coordination of operations and multi-benefit management and regulatory strategies will increase 
efficiency and effectiveness in achieving the overall goals for the Delta and California.  State and federal water 
agencies must better align their policies and work together seamlessly to optimize outcomes.  California 
congressional representatives, with the support of the State, should seek to ensure maximum discretion and 
flexibility in operations of federally-owned water infrastructure to further the achievement of the co-equal 
goals through increased oversight, direction, and legislation if necessary.  Transparency and accountability are 
critical for managing a complex system and building trust among all interests. 

The concept of investing in the creation, restoration, and protection of habitat and fostering improvements to 
overall ecosystem function to enhance foundational ecological processes and thus strengthen the biological 
building blocks for multiple species is widely supported by science and policy.  However, implementing such a 
multi-species, ecosystem approach has proved challenging with some populations on the brink of extinction.  A 
consistent, integrated ecosystem approach is needed from regulatory agencies, management agencies, 
landowners, water users, and others to ensure that functioning aquatic and terrestrial habitats address all of 
the stressors in the Delta.   

Desired Outcomes.   

Coordinate surface storage, groundwater storage, and conveyance operations and increase transparency of 
operations to improve flexibility, efficiency, resilience, and accountability. 

Operate new and existing facilities to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals by better aligning water operations 
and fisheries releases to more natural flow patterns, physical habitat, and fish life cycle needs.   

Consistently pursue multi-species, multi-stressor management strategies and regulatory processes to 
maximize sustainable ecosystem function.   

Integrate and coordinate habitat restoration to create a mosaic of connected corridors and habitats to 
increase sustainability and resiliency.  

Implementation Timing and Sequencing 
While planning and project evaluation are underway across California in each of these critical water 
infrastructure and operational categories, action and accomplishments have been slow.  For example, State 
and Federal planning and design for water storage projects and ecosystem restoration projects have been 
underway for 15 or more years.  Projects are complex, with a wide variety of interested and affected parties, 
multiple benefits and impacts, and varied or uncertain funding sources.  The State and stakeholders have been 
unwilling or unable to move from planning to implementation. 

No single category of infrastructure will meet California’s needs.  Concurrent investment and action is needed 
in natural watersheds, surface and groundwater storage, water conveyance, levee and floodplain 
improvements, habitat restoration, and water management and efficiency.  All of these categories of action 
and investment are needed if California is to manage its highly variable water supplies consistent with The Two 
Co-equal Goals.  Together, they create a system that would be more efficient and effective than the sum of its 
parts.  California needs to be moving ahead on all of these fronts now, not later.  All of the participants noted 
that there has not been sufficient leadership, commitment, and resources dedicated to implementing new 
storage (surface and underground), levee improvements, improved conveyance, habitat restoration, and other 

72



 

 22 June 6, 2014 

actions to ensure integrated solutions and operations consistent with the Two Co-Equal Goals.  Commitments 
are needed to ensure that all of these infrastructure improvements are implemented as expeditiously as 
possible to avoid a future catastrophe or system failure and that the improvements result in benefits for 
California’s economy and ecosystem.   

Urgent action is needed to avoid further conflicts and decline in the Delta and risk to California’s water 
management system and economy.  The critical infrastructure described above will take several more years to 
design and longer to implement.  However, efforts to implement these critical infrastructure actions have 
often been stymied by differing views among policy makers and stakeholders regarding the sequence and 
timing of actions.  Some people believe that all efforts in certain areas should be fully complete before other 
actions are undertaken.  Others envision a different sequence of actions.  For example, some think that new 
storage must be in place before or concurrently with improved Delta conveyance to meet Delta objectives.  
Others state that existing and new storage have limited value without improving Delta conveyance.  The 
sequential approach has led to the current situation, inadequate action and implementation in almost all areas 
and a water management system that cannot meet the needs of people and the environment.  Therefore, the 
following implementation objective guides action and progress: 

Accelerate planning, design, permitting, and construction activities for concurrent implementation of the 
critical infrastructure improvements in habitat restoration, water storage, conveyance, levees, and floodplains, 
with the aim of completing a comprehensive system not later than 2030.   

1. Coordinate and integrate infrastructure planning and design across habitat restoration, water storage, 
conveyance, levees, and floodplains to identify efficiencies and improvements. 

2. Forge local, regional, State, and Federal consensus, agreements, and commitments to accelerate 
implementation. 

3. Complete construction of the infrastructure necessary to meet the objectives identified above by 2030. 
4. Whenever possible, implement near-term actions, such as Delta levee improvements, water operations 

changes, and groundwater storage, to make progress toward the Two Co-Equal Goals. 

Infrastructure Mitigation 
All infrastructure projects have adverse impacts.  Every effort should be made to avoid, minimize, and mitigate 
adverse impacts.  Therefore, the following mitigation objectives apply for infrastructure investments: 

Involve county and local governments early in infrastructure planning and design and mitigation development 
to avoid or minimize impacts and optimize mitigation. 

Whenever possible, use public lands and acquire lands for new infrastructure from willing sellers. 

Identify impacts and develop appropriate mitigation for landowners, communities, and others affected by 
infrastructure construction and operations. 

1. Provide appropriate compensation to landowners and local governments for economic impacts resulting 
from infrastructure projects. 

2. Facilitate regional economic investment for affected regions. 

Infrastructure construction and operations to improve water supply reliability, ecological health, and other 
beneficial objectives are likely to affect farmland and other economically productive areas.  It is reasonable to 
consider mechanisms to address the resulting loss in economic value.   

To address potential economic impacts, it is necessary to consider the direct, indirect, and induced economic 
effects of such projects on the economy of affected jurisdictions.  The following four strategies have been used 
to address economic impacts for other similar projects and programs. 

Property Acquisitions.  Provide fair market value compensation for any property interests conveyed to 
facilitate a project.   

73



 

 23 June 6, 2014 

Localized Operating Impacts.  Compensation for annual (or less frequent) impacts to productivity to the extent 
the lands remain in agricultural (or other) use.  Impacts could occur from land fallowing, changed water 
quality, or other impacts of operation and implementation. 

Generalized Impacts.  This strategy contemplates creation of a local agricultural sustainability fund that would 
be administered by the affected jurisdiction for the purpose of providing loans, grant matching funds, and 
other support for agriculturally-related enterprises. 

Tax Revenue Impacts.  Provide payments-in-lieu-of-taxes for local tax and assessment revenues affected by 
land purchases and reduced agricultural activities. 

These strategies provide appropriate economic compensation and mitigation.  Compensation for property 
acquisition has well established procedures for determining compensation and completing payments.  
Implementing the other three strategies will require direct negotiations to determine appropriate 
compensation levels, sources of funds, and agreements or contracts.  

Positions Regarding Delta Conveyance 
Conveyance improvements to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals remain controversial.  Some support a solution 
that relies solely on shoring up the existing through-Delta system, while others have concluded that dual 
conveyance, which includes both through-Delta conveyance and adding a new isolated component, is the only 
way to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals. 

Those who support a through-Delta only solution have legitimate concerns.  They are concerned that an 
isolated component would reduce the State’s commitment to strengthening and maintaining strategic in-Delta 
levees.  They are concerned that improved conveyance without a concurrent commitment to added storage 
cannot solve the problem.  They worry about how governance of the system would be structured to respect 
and protect Delta interests, particularly regarding water quality.  They are concerned that the operational 
limits imposed by regulations will not be honored at all times.  And they are concerned that there will be 
construction and on-going economic impacts to the Delta that would not be adequately mitigated.  Some who 
are willing to concede that dual conveyance might be needed think that all through-Delta options, water 
efficiency, and storage improvements should be implemented before any commitment is made to dual 
conveyance.  

Others point out that no viable solution has been put forward to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals that doesn’t 
include dual conveyance.  After many years of analysis, the California Department of Water Resources has 
concluded that making necessary improvements to the through-Delta only system in furtherance of the Two 
Co-Equal Goals would actually result in significantly more serious adverse ecosystem impacts on the Delta 
habitat and increased loss of agricultural lands than moving to dual conveyance (Department of Water 
Resources, November, 2013).  The California Department of Fish and Wildlife has maintained since the 1960’s 
that “current diversions in the south Delta are probably the worst thing you can be doing for managing water 
within the Delta” and a north Delta intake “would allow for flexibility in managing water diversions to 
significantly reduce fishery impacts”10.  Proponents think dual conveyance will become increasingly important 
to allow for the capture of high flows resulting from a climate-changed hydrology.  The Public Policy Institute 
of California has concluded that isolated conveyance “is a necessary component of a long-term solution that 
serves economic and ecosystems objectives co-equally” (Lund, et al., Comparing Futures for the Sacramento-
San Joaquin Delta, 2008, p. xv), and that “the combined effects of continued land subsidence, sea level rise, 
increasing seismic risk, and worsening winter floods, make continued reliance on the Delta levee system 
imprudent and unworkable over the long term” (Lund, Hanak, Fleenor, Howitt, Mount, & Moyle, Envisioning 
Futures for the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta, 2007, p. xvi).  While dual conveyance proponents support new 
storage, they think that without new conveyance capability in the Delta, existing storage will continue to be 
significantly underutilized, as would any new storage developed in the future. 

                                                           
10 CDFW presentation to Santa Clara Water District, Maven’s Minutes, November 25, 2013 
(http://mavensnotebook.com/2013/11/25/mavens-minutes-santa-clara-valley-water-district-workstudy-session-dfws-carl-wilcox/). 

74

http://mavensnotebook.com/2013/11/25/mavens-minutes-santa-clara-valley-water-district-workstudy-session-dfws-carl-wilcox/


 

 24 June 6, 2014 

These differences in viewpoints about conveyance are best resolved through the ongoing Bay Delta 
Conservation Plan process.  However BDCP resolves the issue, the signatories to this paper all agree with the 
following: 

• The status quo with respect to conveyance is unsustainable. 
• All solutions will require improved management of water flows to and through the Delta. 
• Investment in strengthening strategic levees in the Delta is critical. 
• Conveyance and storage must be part of an integrated system that provides enhanced flexibility to 

capture and move water to where it is needed when it is needed for environmental, agricultural, and 
municipal needs. 

• Governance must be structured to ensure transparency and accountability to achieve the Two Co-
Equal Goals. 

• Economic mitigation must be included as part of the cost of all infrastructure components. 
• Risk abatement is a necessary driver of the solution. 
• New conveyance facilities are not a substitute for pursuing the full gamut of water management tools 

available to California – including new surface and groundwater storage, continuous improvements in 
water use efficiency, further conservation efforts, alternative local water supplies, enhanced recycling, 
and stormwater capture. 

• Finally, time is of essence because every day of delay extends the water supply vulnerability of 
California’s trillion dollar economy and increases the cost of implementation. 

  

75



 

 25 June 6, 2014 

Chapter 5. Assurances, Accountability, and Action 
Building infrastructure is no simple proposition.  Major infrastructure such as reservoirs, bridges and tunnels, 
and even ecosystem restoration projects, can take 20 to 40 years from concept to completion.  Along the way, 
dozens of issues and challenges have to be addressed.  The good news is that since the 1970s, numerous 
studies and evaluations have been completed of water infrastructure and ecosystem restoration to address 
problems in the Delta and help meet California’s water needs.  What is needed now is a commitment to 
implementation and the mechanisms to assure integrated action. 

The inherent challenge in implementing solutions for the Delta and California water management is that 
integrated solutions include many diverse, interrelated projects and programs.  Historically, efforts to 
implement integrated solutions have collapsed as leaders and stakeholder interests disagree about the 
sequence of actions or pick individual components to advance or oppose.  The whole is greater than the sum 
of the parts, but the dis-integration of the approach is worse for everyone.  Therefore, how the integrated 
program is implemented is at least as important as what the program components are. 

Trust and accountability are critical for accelerating progress on the critical infrastructure and water 
management actions described in this policy paper.  Each interest must be assured that the full benefits of the 
integrated approach will be achieved, impacts addressed, and uncertainties considered.  Commitments, 
assurances, and accountability are the mechanisms for advancing the whole. 

The following are initial commitments, assurances, and accountability issues for advancing solutions for the 
Delta and California water management identified by the participants.  Significantly more work is needed to 
continue these discussions to further refine and implement commitments and assurances that reinforce 
accountability. 

Operating an Integrated Water Management System 
California’s water management system is highly interconnected and managed by hundreds of water managers 
within a complex set of laws and regulations governing water rights, environmental protection and restoration, 
flood management, and water quality.  Coordination and integration of these operations is one of the major 
challenges in achieving a “Water Fix.”  Water operations of new and existing water management facilities for 
the Delta (and by extension the Delta watershed) must be consistent with the Two Co-Equal Goals, which 
begins with better definition and outcomes for Delta ecosystem restoration and for water supply reliability for 
each region that depends on the Delta watershed.  For the ecosystem, water management facilities can be 
operated better to align water operations and fisheries releases to more natural flow patterns, physical 
habitat, and fish life cycle needs resulting in improved aquatic habitats and more efficient water use for the 
environment.  For water supply reliability, new and existing facilities can be operated to capture more water in 
wet periods and reduce diversions from natural systems in dry periods, reducing conflicts with environmental 
needs. 

Implementing an integrated water management system to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals will depend, first 
and foremost, on capable, robust institutional capacity to act and adapt.  Current institutions have not 
demonstrated they possess sufficient resources or the capacity necessary for managing and implementing the 
integrated strategies outlined in this paper, and especially so with the urgency the situation demands.  
Additional work is needed to ensure that State and Federal agencies and other implementing entities have the 
resources and capacity to focus decisions, take effective actions, and achieve intended results. 

Improving operations to achieve the Two Co-Equal Goals will also require operational parameters and 
information management to track and report on water management actions related to flows, diversions, 
storage, and transfers.  Modeling, pilot testing, and revised requirements will be needed to adapt water 
management operations to maximize benefits for the Two Co-Equal Goals, flood protection, and other policy 
objectives. 

76



 

 26 June 6, 2014 

Managing and Decision-Making for Multiple Species 
State and Federal regulatory and water management agencies, water users, landowners, and other interests 
must identify and implement mechanisms to prioritize, encourage, and facilitate multi-species ecosystem 
management and decision-making in regulatory processes, project implementation, and water operations.  
Improved interagency coordination in applying the multi-species approaches allowed under the State and 
Federal Endangered Species Acts is an important first step.  Beyond better agency coordination, however, the 
present regulatory apparatus must evolve beyond the imposition of species-by-species metrics that simply 
cannot be reconciled with the prerequisites of flexibility and adaptation implicit in the multi-species ecosystem 
model.  Further steps are needed to refine and reinforce biological goals and objectives that define 
sustainable, interconnected ecosystems that will promote healthy populations of important native and 
migratory species and the regulatory agencies must expeditiously approve and permit the projects , but the 
plans and programs formulated to achieve those goals and objectives must actually be permitted. 

The California Legislature and Congress should consider specific guidance legislation to State and Federal 
agencies for implementing a multi-species ecosystem management strategy for the Delta.  Such legislative 
direction could clarify the policy intent for the Delta to make all efforts to prioritize and implement a multi-
species ecosystem management strategy, consistent with existing laws.  Additional management direction may 
also be needed within regulatory agencies to reinforce and coordinate an ecosystem, multi-stressor approach 
over single-species protection. 

Risk and uncertainty of outcomes is inherent in Delta actions, so adaptive management is a cornerstone of 
Delta ecosystem management.  Ultimately, a multi-species approach is desirable and it must be planned and 
adopted with a robust adaptive management structure as the best tool to manage the unforeseen and/or to 
address a lack of measurable progress toward species recovery.   

The Delta Plan outlines the policy and implementation framework for the science of adaptive management.  
However, across the country, adaptive management programs have failed to adapt to new information and 
analysis because institutions lack the structure and capacity to act on new information.  This inability to adapt 
policy decision-making to new science and understanding is the likely barrier for effective adaptive 
management for the Delta.  Three elements are needed to support adaptive action and decision-making: 

• Maintain independent regulatory authority, flexibility, and institutional capacity to make decisions 
(and change them if necessary) at minimal cost to improve results and performance. 

• Define outcomes and performance measures to provide explicit progress and results framed such that 
policy makers can understand and act on changes. 

• Ensure public transparency and accountability of information, analysis, and recommendations such 
that policy options and decisions are evaluated and vetted. 

Furthermore, barriers and constraints to adaptive management decision-making must be reduced.  For 
example, collaborative decision processes and extensive environmental reviews of each adaptive decision will 
ensure that beneficial adaptation will not happen.  Improved mechanisms for transparency and performance 
reporting are needed to quickly identify when and how adaptation is needed. 

Funding Strategies for Implementation  
Water infrastructure is critical to California’s economic, environmental, and social goals.  California water 
management agencies spend more than $30 billion per year to deliver supplies, prevent water pollution, 
provide flood protection, and manage aquatic ecosystems.  Increasing recognition of environmental needs and 
a growing population have increased demand.  Investment in conservation and water use efficiencies has and 
will continue to help offset that demand growth, but not enough to avoid the painful consequences and 
vulnerabilities cited in this paper or to prepare us for a future of deeper and more prolonged droughts.  There 
are no inexpensive fixes.  Additional infrastructure will come at a cost to ratepayers.  Tough, expensive choices 
will need to be made by policymakers.  Decision-avoidance will only add to the cost by dedicating more 
resources to crisis-management until durable solutions are implemented.  

77



 

 27 June 6, 2014 

State priorities and policies are affirmed and only become meaningful through funding decisions that 
implement policies and match priorities.  Initiatives and projects that are funded get done.  If the actions 
proposed under the three broad strategies described in this document are to be implemented, a funding plan 
must be in place, and it must be a plan that engenders trust with stakeholders and can garner support 
throughout California.  Every element of the 
Governor’s comprehensive California Water Action 
Plan must be accounted for in the funding plan, and 
the beneficiary pays principle (see sidebar) should be 
applied to allocate costs.  Mitigation funding and 
assurances must also be included.  

Considerably more work needs to be done to fully 
flesh out a funding plan.  An educated guess is that 
the total funding required to implement this plan 
over the next 15 years is in the range of $40 to $45 
billion.  

• Much of this funding, perhaps 50% to 60%, will 
come from specific user beneficiaries rather than 
the general public—primarily for conveyance and 
storage projects, provided there are reliable 
assurances that these beneficiaries will receive 
the expected benefits to be derived from their 
investments in such infrastructure. 

• Approximately 25% can come from the water 
bond currently under discussion—primarily to 
cover watershed/ecosystem restoration, drinking 
water and wastewater projects for 
disadvantaged communities, strategic levee 
enhancements, support for integrated regional 
water management and alternate water supplies, 
and the public benefits of added storage, 
including fisheries and habitat management, 
water quality, flood management, and 
recreation.  The public must receive assurances 
that these public benefits will be achieved 
concurrently with benefits for water users. 

• The balance can be sourced from a combination 
of local, State, and Federal sources to fund all 
elements of the California Water Action Plan, 
including watershed management, levee 
maintenance, floodplain management, 
groundwater management, regional self-reliance, 
and conservation and water use efficiency 
projects.  The Governor’s 2014-15 budget 
includes $619 million to begin implementing the 
California Water Action Plan, including $473 million for regional water management.  State general 
obligation bonds have also been an important source for leveraging local and Federal funds.  For example, 
in 2007 and 2008, the State Water Resources Control Board granted $180 million in Proposition 50 funds 
to support 104 integrated water management projects in 10 regions.  Local and regional entities 

Beneficiary Pays Principle 
“Beneficiary Pays” has been an important principle 
of Delta water resources planning since at least 
1995.  The principle is simple in concept, but has 
proven difficult to implement.  In concept, 
beneficiary pays means that those who benefit 
from a project or program should pay 
proportionally for the benefits received.  
Beneficiaries can be either public or private. 

Public Benefits include those goods or services 
from a project or program that are available to 
everyone or where a specific beneficiary cannot be 
identified.  Examples of public benefits include 
ecosystem restoration, programs to address legacy 
impacts of past practices (when responsible 
entities are not readily identified), and the 
availability of recreation facilities (even if a fee is 
charged for specific use). 

User Benefits are those goods and services from a 
project or program that can be directly or indirectly 
attributed to a specific organization or class of 
beneficiaries.  For example, water supplies 
developed for urban or agricultural users would be 
private benefits because the water is delivered to 
an entity for its use (even if the entity is a public 
agency). 

The Polluter or Stressor Pays Principles are two 
additional subsets of user beneficiaries who receive 
benefits from the permitted contamination or 
stress of a natural resource.  For example, 
wastewater treatment plants are a permitted 
discharge of pollutants to water bodies and pay for 
programs to reduce or mitigate the effects of those 
discharges. 

For more information, see white papers on 
responsible public investments by the California 
Urban Water Agencies, 
http://www.cuwa.org/current.html.  

78

http://www.cuwa.org/current.html


 

 28 June 6, 2014 

contributed an additional $307 million to these projects.11  In 2014, DWR awarded $153 million of 
Proposition 84 funds for 138 local projects with a total estimated cost of $800 million (local and Federal 
funds will pay for the difference).  Comparable amounts need to be included in future budgets.  

We urge the administration to develop a funding plan this year to guide and enable implementation of the 
California Water Action Plan, sooner rather than later, including establishing a process to develop the requisite 
and reasonable assurances required by beneficiaries to participate in funding the various components of the 
comprehensive plan.  

Other Actions and Commitments to Build Trust 
One clear conclusion of the discussions leading to development of this Water Fix policy paper is that trust 
among the various interest involved with the Delta and California water issues is in short supply.  While the 
discussions have been valuable for increasing understanding among participants regarding interests and 
positions, the subject of commitments and assurances requires government leadership and continued trust-
building among stakeholders.  Almost all participants expressed interest in continued discussions.  Much more 
work is needed to develop sufficient relationships and commitments to advance a comprehensive water fix 
and minimize costly and unproductive conflict and litigation.  Therefore, we urge the Governor and his 
Administration, to undertake and facilitate a process to develop mutually acceptable assurance mechanisms 
related to implementation, mitigation, operations, and other issues.  Such a process should be based on an 
integrated analysis of California’s water management considering the actions and recommendations outlined 
in this policy paper. 

Progress and Performance Timeline and Accountability 
Progress and performance accountability is critical for advancing programs and projects that have a history of 
inadequate implementation.  The general policy framework is largely in place.  Now, the Governor’s 
administration, in partnership with stakeholders, must identify and implement progress and performance 
objectives for concurrent implementation.  These objectives must be immediately followed with concise and 
mutually acceptable responses to reinforce performance and accountability (actions and consequences). 

Leaders and Champions 
This paper is a call for leadership from State and Federal elected officials—particularly the Governor and the 
President—to advance a comprehensive, integrated approach to water management and ecosystem 
restoration.  However, local, regional, and statewide leaders and champions for action and funding for the 
comprehensive approach are needed from local government, business, labor, academia, environmental 
interests, and water managers.  The signatories to this paper are committed to working with leaders and 
champions from all interests and perspectives to resolve conflicts, get things done, and achieve the Two Co-
Equal Goals. 

 

                                                           
11 State Water Resources Control Board, www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/agendas/2014/mar/030414_10.pdf.  

79

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/agendas/2014/mar/030414_10.pdf


 

 29 June 6, 2014 

Chapter 6. Conclusions  
Many of us have spent the last several months trying to address the very serious impacts of the current 
drought and will continue to do so, but we have taken the time to engage in the development of this policy 
paper because we do not want to repeat past mistakes.  We cannot continue to lurch from crisis to crisis and 
pit regions and interest groups against each other when many actions are available to help prevent that 
pattern from recurring time and again. 

The California Water Action Plan provides the broad outlines of a game plan.  It needs to be transformed from 
an aspirational agenda into an implementation plan of real action.  Such a plan must be developed this year.  
Full-scale implementation can and should begin within the next 12 months, with a goal of completing 
implementation by 2030. 

Consistent with the 2009 Delta Reform Act, the plan must serve both the ecological and human needs of our 
state.  It must give us much more flexibility to manage highly variable wet and dry climate cycles that are 
characteristic of our state; enable us to address better the challenges of climate change and the needs of a 
growing population; better manage flows at the right time and temperature for the environment, lessen our 
vulnerability and increase our resiliency to natural disasters; reverse the unsustainable overdrafting of our 
aquifers; and avoid, minimize, or mitigate the impacts of implementation.  It is presumptuous to think that we 
have all the answers to devise a perfect plan, but we know enough to begin to implement a very good plan and 
adapt as we learn more.  

Anticipated funding sources must be identified in such a plan.  Our state’s economy, ecology, and social well-
being are so dependent on water that we cannot afford not to invest in it.  The question is not whether we 
invest, but whether we do so in response to crises of growing proportion or with a thoughtful plan and clear 
performance metrics before the next crisis is staring us in the face. 

Measures to engender trust and ensure accountability must also be part of such a plan.  Each of the many 
interested stakeholders must be confident that the full benefits of an integrated approach will be achieved, 
impacts addressed, and uncertainties considered. 

This policy paper is a call to action.  It provides evidence that diverse stakeholders with a wide range of 
interests can come together behind common sense solutions.  But we are conscious of our limitations in 
implementing solutions.  We will continue to work with each other and intend to expand our reach to many 
others, but development and implementation of a plan of this complexity requires political leadership and 
unwavering commitment from the State and Federal governments.   

We, the undersigned, urge the Governor, the President, the California Legislature, the California Congressional 
delegation, and Federal officials to provide leadership, direction, and accountability to ensure a comprehensive 
“Water Fix” for California.  We have provided some recommendations regarding what such a “Fix” might look 
like, but more important, we think the opportunity exists today to forge consensus and pursue a viable 
approach to improving statewide, long-term water security and sustainability that has eluded California for 
more than three decades.   

  

80



 

 30 June 6, 2014 

Bibliography 
Bales, R. C., Battles, J. J., Chen, Y., Conklin, M., Holst, E., O'Hara, K. L., et al. (November, 2011). Forests and 

Water in the Sierra Nevada: Sierra Nevada Watershed Ecosystem Enhancement Project. Merced, CA. 

Boardman, T. (October, 2013). Analysis of Long-term CVP Reliability. Westlands Water District. 

Bureau of Reclamation. (November, 2011). Suisun Marsh Habitat Management, Preservation, and Restoration 
Plan, Final EIS/EIR. Sacramento, CA. 

Cohen, A. N., & Carlton, J. T. (1998, January 23). Accelerating Invasion Rate in a Highly Invaded Estuary. 
Science, pp. 555-557. 

Contra Costa Water District. (February, 2010). Historical Fresh Water and Salinity Conditions in the Western 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. Concord, CA. 

Delta Stewardship Council. (2013). Delta Plan. Sacramento, CA. 

Department of Water Resources. (2009). California Water Plan Update 2009. Sacramento, CA. 

Department of Water Resources. (December, 2013). The State Water Project, Draft Delivery Reliability Report 
2013. Sacramento, CA. 

Department of Water Resources. (Fall 2012). Drought in California. Sacramento, CA. 

Department of Water Resources. (November, 2013). Draft EIR/EIS, Bay Delta Conservation Plan. Sacramento, 
CA. 

Department of Water Resources. (November, 2013). Public Draft Bay Delta Conservation Plan. Sacramento, CA. 

Department of Water Resources. (October, 2003). California's Groundwater - Bulletin 118, Update 2003. 
Sacramento, CA. 

Department of Water Resources. (October, 2008). Managing an Uncertain Future: Climate Change Adaptation 
Strategies for California's Water. Sacramento, CA. 

Department of Water Resources. (September, 2013). California Water Plan Update 2013, background data on 
water use and supplies, 1998-2010. Sacramento, CA. 

Lund, J., Hanak, E., Fleenor, W., Bennett, W., Howitt, R., Mount, J., et al. (2008). Comparing Futures for the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. San Francisco, CA: Public Policy Institute of California. 

Lund, J., Hanak, E., Fleenor, W., Howitt, R., Mount, J., & Moyle, P. (2007). Envisioning Futures for the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. San Francisco, CA: Public Policy Institute of California. 

Malamud-Roam, F., & Ingram, B. L. (2004). Late Holocene δ13C and pollen records of paleosalinity from tidal 
marshes in the San Francisco Bay estuary, California. Quatenary Research, 62:134-145. 

Thompson, J. (1957). Settlement Geography of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. Palo Alto, CA: Stanford 
Unversity. 

UC Center for Hydrologic Modeling, University of California, Irvine. (February, 2014). Water Storage Changes in 
California’s Sacramento and San Joaquin River Basins from GRACE. Irvine, CA. 

Whipple, A. A., Grossinger, R. M., Rankin, D., Stanford, B., & Askevold, R. A. (August, 2012). Sacramento-San 
Joaquin Delta Historical Ecology Investigation: Exploring Pattern and Process. Richmond, CA: San 
Francisco Estuary Institute. 

 

81


	2014_Q1_MeetingMinutes_DRAFT_03-21-14.pdf
	Meeting of the Board of Directors    DRAFT

	SVP_consent calendar_JUN14_TULARE.pdf
	Initiative: Smart Valley Places

	SJVHC_consent calendar_JUN14_TULARE.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Housing Collaborative

	RBC_consent calendar.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium

	RBC_consent calendar.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium

	RICI_consent calendar.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Industry Clusters

	RICI_consent calendar.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Industry Clusters

	CRPC_consent calendar.pdf
	Initiative:  Community & Regional Planning Center

	Work Group Report section cover.pdf
	Work Group Reports

	Secretariat_Communications_to update for June meeting_mdm.pdf
	Secretariat Report
	Message from Lead Executive
	Communications Update
	Staff Outreach Efforts
	Electronic Information Distribution
	Communications Tools
	Partnership Website
	Annual Report
	e-Newsletter
	Media



	SJVHC_consent calendar_JUN14_TULARE.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Housing Collaborative

	2014_Q1_MeetingMinutes_DRAFT_03-21-14.pdf
	Meeting of the Board of Directors    DRAFT

	Secretariat_Communications_to update for June meeting_mdm.pdf
	Secretariat Report
	Message from Lead Executive
	Communications Update
	Communications Tools
	Partnership Website
	Annual Report
	e-Newsletter
	Media


	Staff Outreach Efforts
	Electronic Information Distribution

	SVP_consent calendar_JUN14_TULARE.pdf
	Initiative: Smart Valley Places

	RDC_consent calendar_sept 2014.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Rural Development Center

	SJVHC_consent calendar_JUN14_TULARE.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Housing Collaborative

	RBC_consent calendar.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium

	CRPC_consent calendar.pdf
	Initiative:  Community & Regional Planning Center

	RICI_consent calendar.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Industry Clusters

	Work Group Report section cover.pdf
	Work Group Reports

	2014_Q1_MeetingMinutes_DRAFT_03-21-14.pdf
	Meeting of the Board of Directors    DRAFT

	Secretariat_Communications_to update for June meeting_mdm.pdf
	Secretariat Report
	Message from Lead Executive
	Communications Update
	Communications Tools
	Partnership Website
	Annual Report
	e-Newsletter
	Media


	Staff Outreach Efforts
	Electronic Information Distribution

	2014_Q1_MeetingMinutes_DRAFT_03-21-14.pdf
	Meeting of the Board of Directors    DRAFT

	Water Fix Policy Paper 6-6-14.pdf
	Preamble
	Signatories
	Policy Paper Reviewers

	Executive Summary
	Chapter 1. Purpose and Intent
	Solution Framework and Vision
	Obstacles and Solutions

	Chapter 2. Role of the Delta
	The Delta Watershed and Water Supply for California
	The Delta Ecosystem
	Delta Land Uses, People, and Towns
	Delta Water Supply
	Water Quality
	Groundwater Management
	Water System Vulnerability
	Planning and Implementing Solutions
	The Status Quo is Unsustainable

	Chapter 3. California Water Fix Coalition Points of Agreement
	Chapter 4. Direction for the Future
	1. Build a Fully Integrated Water Infrastructure System
	2. Invest in Water Management and Water Use Efficiency
	3. Implement a Coordinated Operating and Regulatory Structure
	Implementation Timing and Sequencing
	Infrastructure Mitigation
	Positions Regarding Delta Conveyance

	Two Co-Equal Goals
	The Delta Plan
	Chapter 5. Assurances, Accountability, and Action
	Operating an Integrated Water Management System
	Managing and Decision-Making for Multiple Species
	Funding Strategies for Implementation
	Other Actions and Commitments to Build Trust
	Progress and Performance Timeline and Accountability
	Leaders and Champions

	Beneficiary Pays Principle
	Chapter 6. Conclusions
	Bibliography





